          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             COMMITTEE ON HOUSING And BUILDINGS

          8

             -------------------------------x

          9

         10                 September 21, 2006

                            Start:  1:15 p.m.

         11                 Recess: 5:20 p.m.

         12                 City Hall

                            Committee Room

         13                 New York, New York

         14

                  B E F O R E:

         15

                         ERIK MARTIN DILAN

         16                                Chairperson,

         17

                         COUNCIL MEMBERS:   Tony Avella

         18                                 Leroy Comrie

                                            Lewis Fidler

         19                                 Robert Jackson

                                            Rosie Mendez

         20                                 Thomas White

                                            Dennis Gallagher

         21                                 James Oddo

                                            Michael Nelson

         22                                 James Vacca

                                            Michael McMahon

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         17 Battery Place -  Suite 1308

         25              New York, New York 10004

                              (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             Robert LiMandri

          4  First Deputy Commissioner

             New York City Department of Buildings

          5

             Stephen Kramer

          6  Senior Counsel

             New York City Department of Buildings

          7

             Eddie Boles

          8  Lieutenants Representative

             Uniformed Fire Officers Association

          9

             Ryan Galvin

         10  on behalf of

             Manhattan Borough President Scott Stringer

         11

             Kim Lee Vauss

         12  Registered Architect

             ARC Consultants, Inc.

         13

             Monty Mitchell

         14  Chair

             AIA New York Manhattan Chapter

         15

             Hal Dorfman

         16  Licensed Architect

             New York City

         17

             Mitchell Goldberg

         18  New York Society of Architects

         19  Robert Altman

             Consultant

         20  Queens & Bronx Building Association and Building

             Industry Association of New York City

         21

             William Gati

         22  President

             Queens Chapter of American Institute of Architects

         23

             William Gati

         24  President

             American Institute of Architects (AIA) Queens

         25

                                                            3

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Good afternoon.

          3  I'd like to convene this afternoon's hearing on the

          4  Committee of Housing and Buildings. Before I begin

          5  my opening statement, I'd just like to acknowledge

          6  the members who are here. Starting to my far left,

          7  Council Member Rosie Mendez from Manhattan, who is

          8  also the Chair of the Subcommittee on Public

          9  Housing; Council Member James Vacca from the Bronx

         10  (not a member of the Committee), but very much

         11  interested in today's issue and has a couple of

         12  bills on the agenda and I may turn to you to make a

         13  statement; Council Member Tony Avella and Council

         14  Member Mike Nelson. My name is Council Member Eric

         15  Martin Dilan. I'm the Chair of the Committee on

         16  Housing and Buildings and I'd like to thank all of

         17  you for attending today's hearing.

         18                 We have four bills on the agenda

         19  today that deal with the subject of self-

         20  certification by architects or professional

         21  engineers. The Council was concerned about the

         22  quality of building construction including

         23  renovations and the performance of individuals who

         24  certify that any building plans are in accordance

         25  with the City building code and other applicable
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          2  law. The practice of self- certification by certain

          3  architects and engineers has sometimes lead of

          4  inappropriate building practices in the City of New

          5  York.

          6                 The bills before the Committee today

          7  are Intro No. 29, sponsored by Council Member

          8  Michael McMahon from Staten Island who has just

          9  joined us. And 299 sponsored by Council Member Mike

         10  Nelson, to my right and Council Member James Vacca

         11  is the author of Intro 308 and 309. Council Member

         12  McMahon's bill, Intro 29, is a local law to amend

         13  the administrative code in the City of New York, in

         14  relation to eliminating self- certification plans

         15  submitted to the Department of Buildings.

         16                 Intro 299 by Council Member Nelson, a

         17  local law to amend the administrative code of the

         18  City of New York in relation to imposing sanctions

         19  upon professional engineers and registered

         20  architects that self-certify false or noncompliant

         21  building permit applications or plans. Intro 308 by

         22  Council Member James Vacca, a local law to amend the

         23  administrative code of the City of New York in

         24  relation to the probation of professional engineers

         25  and registered architects. And 309 also by Council
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          2  Member Vacca, a local law to amend the

          3  administrative code of the City of New York in

          4  relation to creating a database of professional

          5  engineers and architects who self-certify false or

          6  noncompliant building permit applications or plans

          7  in relation to sanctioning professional engineers

          8  and registered architects who self-certify a false

          9  or noncompliant building permit applications.

         10                 Now all that sounds pretty harsh. But

         11  I think our intent is to really go after all of the

         12  really bad architects that basically don't follow

         13  the City's building code. In an effort to help

         14  everyone understand the content of these bills by

         15  way of background, I will provide a brief of

         16  summation of what they do. Twenty- nine is designed

         17  to eliminate the provisions of the administrative

         18  code that allows architects and engineers to self-

         19  certify plans and applications submitted to the

         20  Department of Buildings.

         21                 Intro 299 would revoke

         22  self-certification privileges of any professional

         23  engineer or registered architect when the Department

         24  determines that at least two applications for plans

         25  that were self-certified by such professional
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          2  engineer or registered architect were found to

          3  contain false information or were found not to be in

          4  compliance with all applicable provisions of law.

          5                 Intro 308 would mandate that the

          6  Department of Buildings examine all portions of any

          7  application for approval of plans and amendments

          8  thereto when such application or plan amendment was

          9  submitted by any professional engineer or registered

         10  architect that was put on probation by the New York

         11  State Board of Regents for duration of such time

         12  that such licenses are on probation.

         13                 Intro 309 would impose a six-month

         14  probationary period upon any professional engineer

         15  or registered architect following the restoration of

         16  self- certification privileges that was suspended by

         17  the Department of Buildings and mandate that the

         18  Department of Buildings revoke self- certification

         19  privileges to any engineer or architect that

         20  certified an application that contained false

         21  information or that was not in compliance with all

         22  applicable provisions of law when such falsity or

         23  noncompliance occurred on three or more occasions

         24  during any 12 month period.

         25                 Intro 309 would also permit the

                                                            7

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  restoration of self-certification privileges in

          3  certain instances when a revocation period of one

          4  year or more has passed. However, such restoration

          5  would still be considered under a six-month

          6  probationary period. The bill would also mandate

          7  that DOB maintain a database of all professional

          8  engineers and architects that self-certify false or

          9  noncompliant applications with DOB and require that

         10  DOB issue an annual report to the Council and the

         11  Mayor on this matter.

         12                 Finally, on Intro 309, it would

         13  require the Department of Consumer Affairs to

         14  provide written information concerning the

         15  suspension and revocation of self- certification

         16  privileges with regards to a professional engineer

         17  or architect upon the request of every person who

         18  seeks such information from the Department of

         19  Consumer Affairs.

         20                 The Committee is really interested in

         21  learning about DOB's audit and review process of

         22  self- certified plans and documents. What measures

         23  they take, if any, to ensure compliance with the

         24  building code and zoning regulations and the

         25  Committee would also like to know about any

                                                            8

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  disciplinary actions that the Department conducts on

          3  its own and procedures taken by DOB or the City for

          4  abuses to the professional certification process.

          5  The Committee expects to hear testimony from

          6  representatives of Department of Buildings, other

          7  professionals and members of the general public who

          8  are concerned about the subject of professional

          9  self- certification and review plans of the

         10  Department of Buildings.

         11                 Since that long opening which I

         12  apologize for, but it was very necessary, we have

         13  been joined by Council Member James Oddo who is the

         14  Minority Leader and also the Chair on the Task Force

         15  to reform the Buildings Department. I must take this

         16  time out to personally congratulate him on his

         17  immense quenching the NL east for the first time.

         18  I'm getting to you, for the first time in 15 years.

         19  I'm sure if I had to take a vote versus Met fans or

         20  Yankees fans on this Committee, that we probably

         21  couldn't get any legislation passed. I'd also like

         22  to thank the Yankee fans on the Committee for

         23  quenching their 9th AL east title in a row. We've

         24  got a lot to celebrate today.

         25                 At this time, before we get to our
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          2  first witness today, I would ask that if any of the

          3  members that have a bill up on today's agenda, if

          4  they would like to a brief opening. I see Council

          5  Member Nelson has asked first. Council Member

          6  Nelson, you can go and if any other member that has

          7  an Intro before the Committee today, if they would

          8  like to make a brief opening, I'd like them to do

          9  so.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chair. I'm still rooting for the Brooklyn Dodgers.

         12  That's when I left baseball when they left Brooklyn.

         13  I'd like to thank you for today's hearing and

         14  Speaker Quinn. This is a very important hearing.

         15  Self- certification has become one of those nasty

         16  buzz words in recent years. I represent the 48th

         17  Council District and in the last calendar year, we

         18  have overseen three rezonings in Homecrest, Midwood,

         19  and Sheepshead Bay and I plan on finishing two more

         20  rezonings in the area of Brighten Beach.

         21                 My experience in each of these

         22  rezonings showed me instead of the inability, I like

         23  to say the difficulty of the Department of Buildings

         24  to adequately enforce the growing needs. Perhaps it

         25  is a staffing problem of the housing industry
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          2  throughout the five boroughs. In concept, I agree

          3  with the idea of self- certification. I believe it

          4  serves as a cost- effective way for government to

          5  enforce the building code. In other words, the cost

          6  to review every plan and maintain its accuracy

          7  through the completion would be too much of a

          8  burden. Self- certification allows the burden of

          9  proof to be shared upon the architect or engineer or

         10  whoever in question.

         11                 While I'm sure it is written

         12  somewhere is that falsely certifying a plan is wrong

         13  and illegal, I doubt this is being enforced

         14  adequately. I have not heard of one single case of

         15  that happening. Furthermore, fines are simply the

         16  cost of doing business. It is crucial that we

         17  address this issue in a timely manner. I believe

         18  Intro 299, where it is a two strikes you are out

         19  bill, serves as a legitimate deterrent to architects

         20  and engineers who falsely certify. If anyone even

         21  thinks the current system is working, I urge you to

         22  come down to my district. I will give you a walk

         23  through in Manhattan Beach. It is a poster child for

         24  buildings run a muck.

         25                 We cannot sit idly by while this loop
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          2  hole and the law is being taken advantage of

          3  possibly every day. The law must serve to both

          4  protect the zoning code and deter those who look to

          5  cut corners. I look forward to this Committee

          6  addressing all these issues today and in subsequent

          7  hearings. Now in late August of this year, New York

          8  City firefighters responded to a call for a fire at

          9  12:29 p.m., 1575 Walton Avenue in a one- story, 99

         10  cent store near the Grand Concourse. The blaze

         11  quickly went to a second alarm in about ten minutes

         12  and then a third alarm about 25 minutes later.

         13                 The FDNY units entered the building

         14  in a search for victims and then a collapse

         15  occurred. May days were transmitted and firefighters

         16  rescued five trapped members. Two firefighters

         17  perished while a total of 23 firefighters were

         18  injured in the fire. Building Department records

         19  indicated that the building had a fire several years

         20  ago and that reconstruction work was performed in

         21  2000. It is believed by many that this work was

         22  inadequately certified. The jury still seems to be

         23  out on that. I'm trying to get word on that. With

         24  respect to the recent tragic loss of firefighters

         25  Reilly and Lt. Carpluk, we must maintain the
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          2  integrity of the building code so that all of our

          3  first responders know they are responding to

          4  properly built buildings. Obviously, anything less

          5  than that would be unaccepted and potentially

          6  criminal.

          7                 I'm not so sure entirely that we can

          8  live with self- certification the way things are

          9  going. I understand in principal or in theory, it

         10  may be economically prudent to do so. But the way

         11  this is going, I think that two strikes and you are

         12  out is fair as we are going to get. And some might

         13  say as matter of fact that it is perhaps too

         14  lenient. Although, I would say I'd like to self-

         15  certify our elections in the future, in Chicago

         16  maybe and other places. Obviously, that would be

         17  ridiculous. Some may like it. Anyway, I think the

         18  two strikes you're out is a fair balance in where we

         19  are heading and where we should wind up. I thank you

         20  all and Chair Dilan, thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Council Member

         22  Vacca will be next up. I want to remind the members,

         23  please make a brief opening statement. If there is

         24  anyone in the public at this point that wishes to

         25  testify, please see the Sergeant- at- Arms to fill
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          2  out an appearance form. Council Member Vacca. If you

          3  haven't done so already. Sorry.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Chairman. My bills today focus on self-

          6  certification as well. The first one came about

          7  because we had a house that was proposed to be built

          8  in Throgs Neck and when I went to the site, I found

          9  out that it was an alley way. When I looked at the

         10  plans on the BIS, I said that this just cannot be.

         11  It was self- certified. I objected. I went with the

         12  zoning resolution and I noticed that not only could

         13  it not be built, but the architect in question was

         14  suspended previously. Currently at that time, he was

         15  on probation.

         16                 He had been fined by the New York

         17  State Board of Regents and when I inquired at the

         18  Buildings Department, I said how can an individual

         19  like this who is on probation from a State agency,

         20  who has been fined and who plead to the fine, now be

         21  allowed to file before the New York City Buildings

         22  Department, self- certify and meanwhile file an

         23  application that is totally out of order to boot. I

         24  was told that there was no legislative authority for

         25  the City of New York to deny him the right to self-
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          2  certify or the right to file plans. That job is

          3  still stopped now more than a year and half later. I

          4  do not think that what he wants to do can be

          5  legalized. We have a hole that I've tried to

          6  identify.

          7                 My second bill relates to that word

          8  transparency. People have a right to know architects

          9  who have been suspended. Ladies and gentlemen, in my

         10  community would like to legally enlarge a porch.

         11  Legally do work in their house. There should be in a

         12  public way a knowledge of who has self- certified in

         13  the past, who has had plans rejected, who has self-

         14  certified in error. And those who continually self-

         15  certify in error should have that privilege taken

         16  away for a period of time. My bill proposes a one

         17  year period where they would then be placed on a

         18  probationary period and then have that privilege

         19  permanently taken away should they falsely self-

         20  certify again.

         21                 I think we have to realize when

         22  people self- certify, they place their name to a

         23  piece of paper and if they have any hesitancy about

         24  it, they should file plans and go through a review

         25  process whereby plan examiners look at what was
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          2  filed and issue a decision. Self- certification is a

          3  privilege and its abuse hurts the quality of life on

          4  streets where people live in my district and

          5  throughout the City. I think that my two bills have

          6  merit and I think that it would put protections in

          7  the law for people in the City who insist that the

          8  zoning resolution be upheld at all times.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Before we get to

         10  Council Member McMahon, I was remiss in also

         11  acknowledging the presence of a member of the

         12  Committee and also another big Met fan, Council

         13  Member Louis Fidler and I certainly hope my Yankees

         14  face your Mets in the world series this October. So

         15  should you, sir. Council Member McMahon.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Mr. Chairman,

         17  I just want to thank you and your staff and the

         18  members of this Committee, this full Committee for

         19  addressing this very important issue. I'm going to

         20  gently disagree with my colleague, Mike Nelson and

         21  even with Jim Vacca a little bit because I believe

         22  that self- certification is a privilege that should

         23  not even exist. By having self- certification in

         24  existence, it is an abrogation of the government's

         25  duty to review building plans and engineer's designs
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          2  to make sure that buildings that are out of place,

          3  out of character and violation of the zoning laws

          4  are not built.

          5                 When we started this, we thought it

          6  was a matter of community preservation and

          7  neighborhood preservation and just making New York

          8  City a better place to live. But clearly as Council

          9  Member Nelson pointed out, this is also a matter of

         10  life and death. I don't know what the right metaphor

         11  is, whether it is the foxes are in charge of the hen

         12  house, but to allow architects and engineers to

         13  self- certify a plan when they are hired by somebody

         14  to get that plan through and to get that plan

         15  approved as soon as possible, they are not acting as

         16  independent professionals. They are acting as hired

         17  guns for people who want something done and they

         18  want it done quickly.

         19                 I happen to be an attorney. Attorneys

         20  cannot self- certify orders, infants compromises,

         21  judgments. They go to a judge and a judge is the

         22  independent decision maker and he/she makes

         23  decisions that are in the best interest of the

         24  people who are before that court. It is the

         25  Department of Buildings job to look at every plan in
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          2  my opinion to make sure that the plans follow the

          3  law, to make sure the building that is going to be

          4  built is going to be safe. I know this experience we

          5  have all have and I will conclude, Mr. Chairman.

          6                 Each and every one of us we are going

          7  to have war stories here today. When we got wind of

          8  a building that was being built and we got a hold of

          9  the plans and we looked at those plans and we saw

         10  that it was self- certified in violation of the

         11  zoning or in violation of the building code and we

         12  run to the Buildings Department and said, I had one

         13  in my district who was self- certified for two

         14  family houses in a R2 zone which only allows one

         15  family.

         16                 We had to run down to the Buildings

         17  Department and put a hold on that job and if we

         18  didn't, it would have been self- certified, it was

         19  and was approved and the houses would have been

         20  built. This is the government's job and I hope that

         21  we can find the will in this Committee and in this

         22  Council to put an end to this rapacious behavior

         23  that is going on throughout the City of New York.

         24  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you very
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          2  much and I just want to briefly thank the Committee

          3  staff in help of preparation of today's hearing.

          4  Terzah Nasser, Counsel to the Committee. We've also

          5  been joined by Camila Shadine (phonetic) who is a

          6  new legislative attorney to assist Terzah. Camila,

          7  welcome. And also to Mr. Ben Goodman who is the

          8  Policy Analyst and then also new to the Committee

          9  from the Council's Finance Department is Mr. Anthony

         10  Berrdo (phonetic). We welcome him also.

         11                 Without further a due, we will go on

         12  to our first witness to testify, the Department of

         13  Buildings, Deputy Commissioner, Mr. Bob LiMandri.

         14  Welcome and we look forward to your testimony. If

         15  you could just begin by identifying yourself for the

         16  record. But before you begin, I don't want to get

         17  into any more trouble. We've also been joined by

         18  Council Member Leroy Comrie and Council Member Bob

         19  Jackson.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Good

         21  afternoon, Chairman Dilan. My name is Robert

         22  LiMandri. I'm First Deputy Commissioner of

         23  Operations for the Department of Buildings. Joining

         24  me today is I'd like to point out is Steve Kramer

         25  our Senior Counsel for the Department and other
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          2  members of the agency sitting directly behind me to

          3  hear what you have to say today.

          4                 I'd like to thank you for giving me

          5  the opportunity today to discuss several bills that

          6  have been introduced concerning the Department's

          7  professional certification program. That is 29, 299,

          8  308 and 309. I thought I might give some background

          9  to the Professional Certification Program. Before

         10  going into these bills in detail, I'd like to give

         11  you this background and the measures that we have

         12  recently taken to increase the oversight of the

         13  program. I am, of course, aware that the program has

         14  been a controversial one and I think that an

         15  understanding of its background and recent changes

         16  we have made in the program will be helpful to the

         17  discussion of these pieces of legislation.

         18                 In 1995, because the Department

         19  lacked sufficient manpower to review each of the

         20  thousands of applications submitted to it each year,

         21  the Department implemented what we call the

         22  Professional Certification Program for registered

         23  architects and professional engineers. Under this

         24  program, architects and engineers who have been

         25  registered by the State of New York to practice
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          2  their professions are allowed to take the

          3  responsibility to certify that plans that they have

          4  prepared for construction projects comply with the

          5  zoning resolution and building code.

          6                 Last year, 73,000 construction

          7  applications were filed with the Department of

          8  Buildings. Forty- seven percent of those

          9  applications were professionally certified.

         10  Professionally certified projects range from small

         11  jobs such as an addition of a room or a deck to a

         12  single family home to the construction of a new

         13  building. With the zoning resolution as detailed and

         14  complex as the City's covering dozens of different

         15  zoning classifications, each with numerous different

         16  regulations, the Department recognizes that plans

         17  are professionally certified must be closely

         18  monitored.

         19                 This is particularly true now since

         20  the rezoning resolution has been amended in the last

         21  few years in so many neighborhoods. The Department's

         22  primary tool for assessing the use of the

         23  Professional Certification Program by license

         24  professionals has been our audit program. Last year,

         25  we audited 6,200 professional certified
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          2  applications; 900 more than the previous year. This

          3  check on professional certification is the knowledge

          4  that plans are regularly audited and that the

          5  auditing can lead to a stop work order, a revocation

          6  of permit or revocation of the filer's certification

          7  privileges has been our basic tool in monitoring the

          8  program.

          9                 However, this 6,200 jobs were audited

         10  fell so much short of our 20 percent audit goal. We,

         11  in fact, audited 17.5 percent of the professionally

         12  certified plans submitted due to the increase volume

         13  in construction activity, as you all well know. We

         14  continue to work to achieve our goal of auditing the

         15  20 percent of professionally certified plans. And

         16  accordingly, we have with funding from the Mayor and

         17  this Council have provided immediate plans to add

         18  additional plan examiners to our staff.

         19  Specifically, at the end of last fiscal year, the

         20  Department had approximately 115 plan examiners on

         21  the staff. We requested that an additional 19

         22  examiners be hired in two stages. The first nine was

         23  planned for '07 and ten for '08.

         24                 However, the City Council realizing

         25  the importance of the new examiners and the new fact
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          2  that it takes about six months for us to find, hire

          3  and train funded all 19 examiners early in '07. The

          4  Department has a very active recruitment program and

          5  we are working hard to fill these positions. In this

          6  regard, I want to take note that we have also been

          7  given funding for seven additional plan examiners to

          8  handle the special audit request. Special audits

          9  which stem from requests by community boards; some

         10  of you around this table, members of the public

         11  provide additional check on professional

         12  certification. Filers thus know that there is a real

         13  chance that their professionally certified plans

         14  will be subject to a full plan review.

         15                 In addition to these increases in

         16  staff, I want to describe to you several major

         17  initiatives that we have now under way with respect

         18  to the Professional Certification Program. These

         19  initiatives will add checks to the professional

         20  certification process beyond our audit programs and

         21  will minimize the risk of zoning non- compliance.

         22  These initiatives are the zoning compliance project,

         23  information technology zoning monitoring, and a

         24  revise rule to govern the Professional Certification

         25  Program.
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          2                 First, the zoning compliance pilot.

          3  The first initiative we've undertaken is in Staten

          4  Island. In that office, the Department started to

          5  perform a zoning review of all new building and

          6  alteration Type 1 applications prior to acceptance.

          7  Under this program, we have been looking at all

          8  professionally certified plans from major zoning

          9  issues. These include, floor and area and open space

         10  issues, density, lot and area and width and required

         11  yards, and of course, height and set back. Several

         12  weeks ago, we expanded the program to the Bronx,

         13  Brooklyn, Queens borough offices. This new program

         14  enables us to prevent infringements on the zoning

         15  resolution at the beginning of the permitting

         16  process before construction has commenced when

         17  errors are most easily and least costly to correct.

         18                 This program also allows us to

         19  identify major zoning issues and those professionals

         20  that we must focus upon. Because the review is a

         21  more limited than the full plan review, we are

         22  achieving a review of these submissions within

         23  several days of their submission. These zoning

         24  screening, of course, does not limit or restrict the

         25  Department's right to perform audits and additional
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          2  reviews at any stage of the process. That means in

          3  addition to what we're doing up front. We expect to

          4  see far fewer complaints of non- compliant buildings

          5  as a result.

          6                 Second, using information technology.

          7  As you know, it is a cornerstone of the

          8  Commissioner's tenure here. To assist in our ability

          9  to review zoning, we are also in the process of

         10  implementing PLUTO and everything at the City has an

         11  acronym; Primary Land Use Tax Lot Output and we

         12  didn't make it up. This data file is maintained by

         13  our friends at City Planning. This file lists the

         14  zoning district in overlays of the 950,000 buildings

         15  in the City. It will enable us to match the

         16  information provided on the application for a

         17  construction permit to the zoning data for the block

         18  and lot from City Planning.

         19                 This I can't tell you is an

         20  invaluable tool which will automatically verify

         21  applicable zoning assumptions. In other words, if an

         22  applicant misrepresents the applicable zoning

         23  requirements, the applicant will get caught and

         24  stopped at the door. There are a number of technical

         25  issues to resolve before we can actually commit to a
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          2  final roll out date. But we believe this program

          3  will increase the compliance and assist in ensuring

          4  compliance with the latest amendments of the zoning

          5  resolution.

          6                 The third area is the amended rule

          7  for revocation of professional certification

          8  privileges. We have amended this rule under review

          9  that governs the precertification project that we

         10  think will strengthen our standards for discipline

         11  of architects and engineers which you just discussed

         12  earlier. Under the Department's existing rules,

         13  professionals who abuse the professional

         14  certification process can lose their ability to

         15  certify new jobs. Their license number is flagged in

         16  our computer system and then they are required to go

         17  through a full plan review for every job henceforth.

         18                 The amendment to our professional

         19  certification rule was published on the 6th of

         20  September and a hearing is scheduled for October 6.

         21  The amendment adds new grounds for suspending and/or

         22  excluding architects and engineers from the procert

         23  program. The new grounds reflects the acts and

         24  evidence that can be used to demonstrate a lack of

         25  professional ethics or competence. For example,
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          2  under the new rule, disciplinary proceedings will be

          3  initiated if an applicant receives two permit

          4  revocations within six months. The new rule will

          5  both delineate for the Office of Administrative

          6  Trials and Hearings (OATH), acceptable standards and

          7  evidentiary proof and put the applicant on notice

          8  that regarding the high standards to which he or she

          9  will be held.

         10                 This suspension or exclusion will

         11  result in increased Department's scrutiny of

         12  applications and plans from those particular

         13  architects and engineers. This will encourage

         14  increase applicant compliance with public safety and

         15  zoning requirements in order to benefit from the

         16  expedited review process that it permits. We

         17  anticipate that the amended rule will go into effect

         18  within the new few months as it goes through the

         19  capital process.

         20                 Like other legal processes,

         21  disciplinary hearings, whether it is concerning a

         22  revocation of their privileges (the professional),

         23  or revocation of a license which require this

         24  afforded due process. This means that the

         25  professional is entitled to present his side of the
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          2  case. For example, a contention that an error was

          3  minor or that it was based on good faith

          4  disagreement about meaning of a provision or the

          5  like. We refer applicants with egregious violations

          6  to the State Department of Education which licenses

          7  and oversees sanctions against professional

          8  architects and engineers. We welcome your support in

          9  indicating to the State Department of Education the

         10  significance you place on these issues and

         11  requesting continued focus of their office of

         12  professional discipline on those transgressors

         13  referred by my Department.

         14                 Comments on the specific bills. I'd

         15  like to turn to the four specific bills and give you

         16  the Department's view on them. First Intro 29. As it

         17  is written, Intro 29 would effectively preclude the

         18  Department from continuing the procert program. It

         19  requires that the Department have plan examiners

         20  review all plans submitted to us by engineers or

         21  architects. This bill is problematic primarily

         22  because of the staffing and space needs. As I noted

         23  above, the Department receives a large number of

         24  applications. Last year, we received 73,000. And

         25  almost 50 percent of them were professionally
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          2  certified.

          3                 If the program was abolished without

          4  first hiring and training additional plan examiner

          5  staff and finding space for them sit, computers,

          6  clerks, et cetera, there would be an enormous back

          7  log and would stop the development in this great

          8  City. Major public initiatives from affordable

          9  housing projects to much needed additions to

         10  hospitals and private housing and commercial

         11  projects would be delayed. Even if minor projects

         12  such as porches, swimming pools, and decks would

         13  have to go through the plan examiner process and be

         14  subject to delay and the increased cost associated

         15  with them.

         16                 Backlog and delays and plan approval

         17  were the prime reason for the institutional of

         18  procert in 1995. We believe that our monitoring

         19  program of procertification can be improved without

         20  abolishing the program entirely. To eliminate the

         21  program is simply not possible without a major

         22  disruption to owners rights to improve their

         23  property.

         24                 Turning now to 299; 299 requires the

         25  Department to permanently revoke the professional
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          2  certification privileges of any engineer/architect

          3  who has twice submitted plans containing false

          4  information or found not in compliance with law.

          5  This is not dissimilar to the one of the many

          6  changes (there were 14 of them) that we made in Rule

          7  21 pertaining to professional certification where

          8  they would lose their right or their privilege to

          9  participate in the program for failing two audits

         10  that resulted in a revocation. Indeed, under both

         11  our current practice and our proposed rule, the

         12  privileges of any professional may be revoked who is

         13  found to have knowingly or negligently submitted

         14  even one set of plans that are materially non-

         15  compliant or who has otherwise demonstrated

         16  incompetence.

         17                 But because the language of Intro 29

         18  does not contain a knowingly or negligent or

         19  incompetence standard, we believe that it would

         20  result in the mandatory revocation of privileges of

         21  users of the program whose errors are minor and thus

         22  should be allowed to continue to participate. We

         23  would also urge that any bill specifying grounds for

         24  discipline explicitly provide for the Department to

         25  provide a rule, by rule further grounds for
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          2  discipline as experienced with the program as it

          3  develops.

          4                 Turning now to Intro 308. This bill

          5  would effectively suspend the professional

          6  certification of plans by any architect or engineer

          7  who has been placed on probation by the New York

          8  State Board of Regents. We believe this is indeed a

          9  good suggestion. The State Board has general

         10  supervision over the engineering architectural

         11  profession and the power to conduct investigations

         12  and hearings on a broad range of affairs. While we

         13  currently exchange information with the Board and

         14  the State Department of Education on a regular

         15  basis, we see no impediment to suspending or

         16  revoking the privileges of a professional who has

         17  been sanctioned by the State.

         18                 And finally, Intro 309 would require

         19  the Department to revoke the professional

         20  certification privileges from professionals who have

         21  been found to have falsely certified plans three

         22  times within one year and who's privileges have been

         23  revoked on six months of probation once the

         24  professional has applied for and been granted

         25  reinstatement and permanently revoked the privileges
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          2  on those on probation who have filed false plans.

          3  This bill also requires that the Department maintain

          4  a database regarding professionals who have filed

          5  any false or non- compliant plans. As you know, one

          6  of the corner stones of the Commissioner's is pieces

          7  of her administration is to be completely

          8  transparent and BIS; the Building Information System

          9  and what we have put on it is a testimony to that.

         10                 While the database and reporting

         11  requirements of the bill are an option, indeed the

         12  Department already publishes on its website the

         13  names of all professionals who have been disciplined

         14  in other provisions of this bill raise issues

         15  similar to the issues that I discussed earlier with

         16  respect to Intro 299. Specifically, the bill fails

         17  to make a distinction between the intentional

         18  misconduct or negligence and incompetence of all

         19  professionals and errors that are minor or matters

         20  of interpretation.

         21                 Moreover, we think that our amended

         22  rule which provides for the exclusion from the

         23  program for those professionals who have submitted

         24  plans twice within the period of six months that

         25  have resulted in revocation achieves a similar
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          2  result to this proposal without presenting the due

          3  process issues presented by the wording of this

          4  bill.  Thank you for the opportunity to discuss the

          5  matters and I now welcome any comments, suggestions,

          6  or questions that you have.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you very

          8  much. I will just open up with a few brief questions

          9  and then turn it over to some of my colleagues who

         10  have already expressed an interest in questioning. I

         11  just wanted to while it is fresh in my mind, last

         12  page of your testimony, you stated that Intro 299

         13  specifically fails to make a distinguish between

         14  intentional misconduct and negligence. I guess has

         15  how the Department then make that determination

         16  between something that's say outright negligent and

         17  something that is maybe an accident or

         18  unintentional. How do you make that determination?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         20  Specifically what we have to do is and many of you

         21  are attorneys yourselves understand that we go

         22  through a process to build a case and look at that

         23  case just for the mere fact of making a mistake on

         24  one set of plans when you submit them does not

         25  necessarily mean that it was intentional. What we
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          2  try to do in many cases is build a pattern or

          3  identify issues that are clearly negligent in that

          4  they are so clear and they are so plain that it is a

          5  transgression.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay. I guess in

          7  your testimony you mentioned professional

          8  certification a lot. Is there a difference between

          9  professional certification and self- certification?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: There

         11  are two terms we use at the Department. One is

         12  professional certification. This is when we consider

         13  an architect or engineer who self- certifies a plan.

         14  We also have, for example, licensed plumbers who

         15  self- certify certain inspections. We make the

         16  distinguish at the Department. When we say

         17  professional certification, it is with regard to a

         18  professional engineer or architect.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: So some of us may

         20  have the ability to certify plans that are maybe not

         21  say a registered professional?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: No one

         23  that is not a registered professional is allowed to

         24  certify plans.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: What do you have
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          2  to or what does someone have to do to show the

          3  Department of Buildings that they are eligible to

          4  self- certify? Must you provide some type of sworn

          5  statement? Must your plan be in application or be

          6  accompanied by some sort of seal or official stamp?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: It's a

          8  good question. There are two pieces of it I guess I

          9  would like to answer. Through the regular permitting

         10  process, you have to stamp those plans with a raised

         11  seal. You have to sign them as the architect of

         12  record. So through the permitting process, these are

         13  the checks and balances that we have that you are

         14  who you say you are. And you certify documents,

         15  several documents in addition to the plans that you

         16  are the architect or engineer of record.

         17                 That said, there are issues that

         18  pertain to engineers or architects who chose not to

         19  go through that process that from the State and we

         20  use the State as the ability and the enforcer to,

         21  for example, revoke their license. Essentially, if

         22  they have a license and they file in the State of

         23  New York, they have the right to professionally

         24  certify jobs. If they lose that privilege, then they

         25  lose it through the Department of Buildings.

                                                            35

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: That was a

          3  minor offense.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: We hope it was

          5  certainly unintentional. If someone is found to

          6  either, I guess, either submit false or

          7  nonconforming plans, will a subsequent submission by

          8  the same individual trigger DOB to likely conduct an

          9  audit of that professional's work?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: The

         11  Department of Buildings typically when they find an

         12  issue, we get these issues directly from the people

         13  that work for you. We get them through our own

         14  auditing process. This is when we go ahead and we

         15  audit plans. It does allow us the ability to use our

         16  resources and, for example, if we find that someone

         17  is doing it on a regular basis, that that would be

         18  an area where we would focus on, yes. So we focus on

         19  individuals that have had a transgression in the

         20  past.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: At this point, I'm

         22  going to turn to my colleague, a member of the

         23  Committee, Council Member Louis Fidler. He will be

         24  followed by Council Member Leroy Comrie.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Chairman. I want to also thank you for conducting a

          3  hearing on these bills which obviously from looking

          4  at the press gallery, I don't think they realize in

          5  the press room what an issue self- certification is

          6  in our communities. I don't go to a community board

          7  meeting or a local civic group meeting where some

          8  issue relating to some building that has been self-

          9  certified doesn't come up. This is a hot button

         10  issue in my community and I want to associate myself

         11  with the remarks that my colleagues issued before

         12  your testimony, particularly of those Council Member

         13  McMahon, who I think makes a very, very good point.

         14  Apropos of his remark, I have my story.

         15                 I have a building on Kemble Street

         16  that was self- certified. The minute the frame went

         17  up, it was perfectly obvious to everybody that this

         18  was a building that was going up one story higher

         19  than it should be, than any other building in the

         20  neighborhood. My office complained to Buildings.

         21  They looked at this self- certification and said,

         22  no, no, it's fine. So we complained again. And in

         23  over a six month period, we must have complained

         24  five times because we kept on looking at it and

         25  Buildings kept on telling us the self- certification
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          2  was right. Then the borough president's office had

          3  their expert look at it and send you a letter saying

          4  the self- certification is correct. And then lo and

          5  behold, another elected official reached out to the

          6  Buildings Department and the Brooklyn Buildings

          7  Commissioner came down and held a press conference

          8  and said, this building is one story too high.

          9                 I guess my office didn't have the

         10  ruby red slippers. But I'm not all that comfortable

         11  with self- certification and I'm not all that

         12  comfortable with the Department of Building's

         13  auditing of self- certification. I think you need to

         14  take very much to heart the fact that there are four

         15  bills before you all of which deal with this problem

         16  to reflect the total dissatisfaction that many of us

         17  have with this process and the affect that it is

         18  having in our neighborhoods. I suggest that we move

         19  forward from here trying to figure out how to carve

         20  out a workable solution. Because I will acknowledge

         21  that 73,000 jobs is an awful lot despite the fact

         22  that the principals articulated by Council Member

         23  McMahon are absolutely correct.

         24                 By the way, I always take offense

         25  when someone raises the issue of affordable housing
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          2  kind of as a boggy man saying don't do that, you're

          3  going to hurt affordable housing. That's happened in

          4  this Committee more times than it should. You are

          5  also going to be delaying the project if a realty

          6  wants to build in my district that I don't want

          7  built. It works both ways. I think we can find a way

          8  to move forward efficiently and effectively and

          9  that's what we need to be doing.

         10                 I want to ask you specifically about

         11  the number of jobs out of that 73,000 that would

         12  qualify as minor projects such as porches, swimming

         13  pools and decks and whether or not that is a

         14  significant enough number that we might be able to

         15  reduce that 73,000 to something where full

         16  certification by Buildings on every project could be

         17  done and this Council could then be responsible in

         18  knowing how much money we need to provide for more

         19  plan examiners, computers, desk space and office

         20  space of which there is plenty in the City of New

         21  York.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Yes, I

         23  would like to respond. There is a couple of things

         24  that you bring up. I would say to you that your last

         25  comment which says let's figure out a way to deal
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          2  with this, we recognize that we have issues here and

          3  we recognize the severity of them. Because each one

          4  of you has something that goes on in your community

          5  and you have war stories to talk about it and we are

          6  right there with you and we understand the issues

          7  and the transgressions.

          8                 Specifically, the one piece that I do

          9  want to talk about first is we have gone down the

         10  road for a pilot program to do an assessment of the

         11  professional certification program by reviewing

         12  before approval, every new building and alteration

         13  Type 1 and alteration Type 1, if you are not

         14  familiar, are those things where I want to build

         15  out, I want to build up and I want to make it a

         16  little bit bigger. To be able to take that

         17  information and identify what we have to deal with

         18  because I think you are right which is 73,000 is a

         19  lot. And where is the appropriate amount of pressure

         20  to put on the program.

         21                 Does it make sense to completely

         22  eliminate the program as Council Member McMahon

         23  discussed or is there a way to balance the program

         24  in a way that allows building to continue that there

         25  is an appropriate enforcement strategy and that

                                                            40

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  there is perhaps some carve out in the number of

          3  applications of the 73,000.

          4                 I would say that out of this program,

          5  we should be able to identify what the true issues

          6  are with the program and not throw the whole thing

          7  out of the window. Because as we know, it is a major

          8  piece of the way the Department has been built and

          9  we appreciate, I can't tell you appreciate how much

         10  we have been supported by the Mayor and the Office

         11  of Management and Budget and specifically from this

         12  Committee with regards to additional funds. You know

         13  spending $14 million in expense and capital funds

         14  for automation and technology to making sure that we

         15  have additional staff to be able to be there and

         16  actually look and see and answer your questions in a

         17  more timely fashion. Essentially, I do think that we

         18  do need to go down that road and figure that out.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Deputy

         20  Commissioner, you didn't answer the question about

         21  porches, decks and swimming pools though. Maybe you

         22  can explain to us the difference between alterations

         23  1, 2 and the other categories and perhaps quantify

         24  for us how many fit into each of the 73,000, if you

         25  are able to answer that today.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I'd

          3  love to run those numbers off the top of my head. I

          4  don't have that with me and I can get it for you.

          5  But specifically, new buildings as you know or a new

          6  construction project where we are going to build a

          7  brand new building from the ground up where there is

          8  no building now, the category of alteration Type 1

          9  is basically when you are going to be doing an

         10  enlargement. That can be vertical, horizontal or

         11  change of use. Change of use is --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Would that

         13  include a deck or porch?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: No, it

         15  does not.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay. That's

         17  an enlargement, but you mean the shell of the

         18  building?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: When we

         20  say deck, we mean Home Depot, I'm going to build a

         21  deck. When I say something that has a roof over it

         22  and a structure that is not a deck. If you want to

         23  and you can do a deck through a different process.

         24  We can get you the actual numbers of applications

         25  for each of those categories for your borough.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: What are

          3  alterations 2 and 3? What are those categories?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

          5  Alterations 2 and 3 are what we would consider minor

          6  work such as if you have a sprinkler system already

          7  installed in your building and you want to add a

          8  reconfiguration of a space and so you need to add

          9  sprinklers. You would file an alteration type 2

         10  application. If you wanted to change the curb cut,

         11  for example, that would be an alteration type 2 or

         12  3. It is when you want to change the egress, for

         13  example, of your building. If you wanted to instead

         14  of routing people out the front door, you want to

         15  route them out the side door, that would an

         16  alteration type 1. If you wanted to add a room on

         17  the back of your home --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: That would be

         19  an alteration 1?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: That's

         21  correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I thought that

         23  was when you wanted to build up or out or --

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: It's

         25  true. But I do want to make the distinction.
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          2  Normally, when we consider a major change to your

          3  building is when you change the egress to the

          4  occupants of the building. So we also consider that

          5  as an alteration type 1. I was remiss of telling you

          6  that in the beginning. It is those three cases. It

          7  is the enlargement, it is the change of use and then

          8  it is also egress.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Without

         10  holding you to specific numbers, could you kind of

         11  give us a guesstimate as to how many fit into which

         12  category percentage wise?

         13                 MR. KRAMER: I'm sure we can get you

         14  those. There is just too many numbers that float

         15  around. But I do want to tell you that I think the

         16  issues with which you are most concerned of what we

         17  have heard from you and from the other members of

         18  the Committee and actually other members of the

         19  Council, are primarily the new buildings and

         20  alteration type 1. If those are the types of

         21  activities which are subject, all of those

         22  activities, are subject to the new program, which my

         23  colleague described, which requires a zoning review

         24  for all of those projects in your borough.

         25                 In other words, we're trying to see
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          2  whether or not we can keep up with the volume and

          3  this is a turn around of two or three days. But

          4  before the applicant can professionally certify now

          5  in Brooklyn, he has to submit the application to us

          6  and all professional certified applications in

          7  Brooklyn, Bronx, Richmond, and Queens are going

          8  through a pre- filing review by our plan examiners.

          9  If we can keep up with the volume and the main

         10  elements of whether we can keep up with the volume

         11  and to identify the issues, the zoning issues which

         12  are violated most often and the individuals who show

         13  the least knowledge of zoning. And particularly, as

         14  you know, we have seen so many zoning changes over

         15  the last year or actually over the last four years

         16  that we really recognize that it is important to

         17  because a lot of architects and engineers just

         18  simply have failed to keep up to date. I think we

         19  are really in agreement that Alt 1's and NB's are

         20  the ones to be looking at.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I would

         22  certainly ask for a full report back to this

         23  Committee of the numbers by category and even within

         24  those numbers you can break them down to something

         25  meaningful. I would hate to impose a burden on
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          2  someone who wanted to shift in a one family home,

          3  shift the egress from the front door to the side

          4  door and make them go through a much more expensive

          5  process than someone who is looking to add a story

          6  to their building. I think that would be a burden on

          7  taxpayer that I wouldn't personally want to impose.

          8  I'd like to know what the numbers are.

          9                 I think that once you get to the

         10  categories that I think we agree where we are most

         11  concerned with, the structural alterations to the

         12  size and shape of the building, a new building. I

         13  think just by the number of members of this

         14  Committee who have put their names on bills or have

         15  spoken here thus far, I think you can be pretty sure

         16  that we are pretty unhappy with the way this system

         17  has been working. I think we need to be looking for

         18  carving out at the very least, an amount of

         19  buildings, a type of building plan that is going to

         20  require the full certification of Buildings

         21  Department for all plans from soup to nuts as

         22  opposed to self- certification.

         23                 I think that's at least where I'm

         24  heading and I think it is clearly where some of the

         25  other members of this Committee are heading. I think
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          2  that we need that information from you as soon as

          3  possible. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: We certainly would

          5  like to receive the information and the Committee

          6  would be willing to share it with any member that

          7  would be interested in that information. Council

          8  Member Comrie followed by Council Member McMahon.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Chair. I want to echo the sentiments of Council

         11  Member Fidler and I just want to highlight it. I do

         12  recall Commissioner Lancaster sitting before us at

         13  the beginning of the year promising to us that she

         14  would have a package ready for us by the fall to

         15  deal with the self- certification issue. I recall

         16  her repeating it during the budget preliminary and

         17  the executive budget negotiation to desire

         18  reflecting her knowledge of our concerns of the

         19  problems with self- certification that she would be

         20  ready to come forth with some legislative solutions

         21  by now.

         22                 I'm very disappointed that you don't

         23  have these statistics broken down to us

         24  specifically. I'm very disappointed that we are here

         25  today to listen to your problems with the bills. But
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          2  you don't have definitive solutions for us to move

          3  forward with today and I would hope that and I

          4  understand the process that we have submitted

          5  legislation and you have to make suggestions. But I

          6  was hoping that you would have some more concrete

          7  and detailed areas so that we could quickly get to

          8  some solution because our communities are suffering.

          9                 In Queens and the district that I

         10  represent, we have problems with self- certification

         11  on many different levels, but primarily the problem

         12  is that because there is not enough inspectors, a

         13  person who is certifying one thing and the builders

         14  are building something totally different. Totally

         15  different than what was certified and because there

         16  is not enough inspectors going out or someone is

         17  going out during the process of the job, the job has

         18  totally changed and the architect or the person that

         19  is doing the certification goes back and alters it

         20  and then the alteration is accepted. That's a major

         21  problem in our communities because number one, it

         22  changes and bends the limits of the zoning

         23  variations. It becomes a point where the Department

         24  of Buildings is forced to accept something because

         25  it is already in the ground or already built when
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          2  the original plans were submitted within the proper

          3  zoning order or proper alteration.

          4                 I can understand that, we understand

          5  that the Department has been overworked. We have

          6  tried to put more money in the budget to address

          7  that. But we really need to utilize this self-

          8  certification clean up to prevent that on the front

          9  end as opposed to the back end. And to try to come

         10  up with real penalties to prevent people from doing

         11  these type of actions is really where we are trying

         12  to get to here.

         13                 I want to try to limit myself to five

         14  questions or less. Yes, I figure I will slip that

         15  in. Clearly, there has to be some level of

         16  trustworthiness. I understand that this is a City

         17  that has to grow and has to change and has to be

         18  modern, but we have to and I'm glad to hear that you

         19  mentioned in your testimony that you are going to do

         20  a computer link with City Planning to make sure that

         21  the zoning up front when the plan is first submitted

         22  is going to be at least checked immediately to be in

         23  zoning compliance. But you said that you are not

         24  sure when that particular PLUTO will be on the

         25  ground and operational. Do you have any idea when
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          2  that will be?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I'm

          4  sorry. Right now, we are in the throes of the IT

          5  folks working it out. We have data from November of

          6   '05 which is up to date and then we have had 17

          7  down zoning since. What we are doing right now is

          8  what we call normalizing the data so that the data

          9  can actually populate of those other 17 down

         10  zonings. We expect that this is not a long term

         11  project that we expect to have it within a month or

         12  two.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: In light of

         14  all the down zonings that you have been inundated

         15  with in the last year, to try to rectify the

         16  situation on the back end and I know at least about

         17  seven or eight more that you are going to get in the

         18  next six months. Has the Department come up with a

         19  strategy to right now if someone walks in with a

         20  plan that there is a proper delay so that the proper

         21  research can be done. Can you walk us through that

         22  process?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Sure, I

         24  can. Going forward, what we have been discussing

         25  with City Planning is that before the down zoning
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          2  actually gets certified by the Council, it is at

          3  that moment when we will have the data to upload

          4  immediately and that would be for us would be the

          5  greatest thing since sliced bread so we can stop you

          6  at the door. That said, right now today, any down

          7  zoning that occurs, prior to the down zoning we get

          8  a list from City Planning of the block and lots that

          9  they think you will certify; because sometimes there

         10  is a little bit of a change. But essentially we take

         11  those.

         12                 We run them against our building

         13  information system which generates reports. We go

         14  out on any project that has already had been

         15  submitted to get an approval or a permit. What we do

         16  is we look at the status of those projects. We take

         17  pictures of that status of that project either

         18  before the actual down zoning or the day of the down

         19  zoning. We basically assemble teams of men who

         20  essentially go out the day of the down zoning. It

         21  gets certified. We go ahead and we identify all the

         22  projects that are in progress that have a permit.

         23  And we take pictures of the condition.

         24                 One of the things that all of you are

         25  aware of is vesting is really important be able to
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          2  identify what the current status is of that project

          3  and because the permit lapses as per the zoning

          4  resolution when that goes into effect, we with the

          5  community have to be solidified with what the status

          6  of that project; were their foundations in, et

          7  cetera. That said, that is about projects that are

          8  in process. Once that down zoning occurs, we do it

          9  manually today where we actually have the list of

         10  block and lots and as those projects come in, all of

         11  our plan examiners and permitting people are

         12  identified that these are the actual block and lots

         13  that have been rezoned. And through that process,

         14  the plan examiners, no matter what, whether it is

         15  professionally certified or not, have to go and look

         16  to see what the professional has certified.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. That

         18  answered a separate question than actually the

         19  question that I asked you. Because what I was asking

         20  is right now especially in my district, we have

         21  people that submit a particular plan knowing that

         22  they are actually building something else. Once you

         23  get the call as Council Member Fidler said, they are

         24  building another story or they are building a

         25  mother/daughter instead of an addition. What is the
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          2  process or the time line between getting that

          3  particular original submission and then calling the

          4  examiner back in to do a review based on a

          5  complaint?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: When we

          7  do get a complaint like you described and this is

          8  Manhattan Beach all over again. Because basically

          9  what these guys did was they submitted a set of

         10  plans that may or may not have been according to

         11  zoning and there are two other people involved in

         12  the program. There is the architect or engineer of

         13  record. There is the developer or building owner and

         14  then there is the contractor. So you have

         15  principally these three players that have an

         16  interest to build something. And it became in

         17  Manhattan Beach a cat and mouse game with them

         18  coming back in, certifying that they are going to do

         19  something different and then us going back out and

         20  making sure that they actually complied with the

         21  plans.

         22                 This in Manhattan Beach we are

         23  monitoring 58 buildings. Nine of them are in

         24  deconstruction and three property owners were

         25  arrested for bribery. This is a program that was
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          2  very effective with what we called the Targeted

          3  Zoning Compliance Group and we have funding for one

          4  set of staff and I remember we talked about that

          5  recently. That is something that we want to build

          6  upon for all the boroughs. But essentially making

          7  sure that when they go out, they are actually

          8  building what they said they were going to build.

          9  Through the normal process, every job that is in

         10  this category is going to be inspected and complied

         11  with plans.

         12                 The issue is when we get a complaint

         13  is that we do additional inspections to make sure

         14  that they comply with the plans. The City Council

         15  has identified for us out of those funds some

         16  additional funds to be able to hire a higher level

         17  inspector that has some zoning compliance

         18  understanding and that is how we plan to address

         19  making sure that the guy goes out is not just an

         20  inspector, but someone has zoning compliance

         21  information at their fingertips.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Most of these

         23  egregious violations are occurring not in multiple

         24  dwelling alterations, but in small home alterations.

         25  Correct? Or at least that's the problem that I'm
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          2  understanding. Most of these violations are

          3  happening in not high- rise construction or even

          4  major multi- family construction. But they are

          5  happening in construction for one family to four

          6  family type buildings. Correct?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: The

          8  issue is I think you are asking me where is it

          9  happening and in what type of structures?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         12  Essentially, I can tell you that today, we have it

         13  in many segments, not just one and two family homes.

         14  And multi- family is an area that we are still

         15  having this same issue. High- rises and what we

         16  consider high- rises are 75 feet and above, we

         17  typically are not having this issue. But in what

         18  I'll call low- rise construction, which is multi-

         19  family and in one and two family homes, we are

         20  having this same issue that was described.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Out of the

         22  73,000, do you have an idea of what the permits were

         23  for the low- rise construction or this was not

         24  73,000 construction permits for low- rise. Correct?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I can

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  tell you that typically the City has about 200 or so

          3  buildings built that we consider high- rise a year.

          4  Basically anything outside of that, there are

          5  multiple permits for a particular job certainly.

          6  Essentially, there is a large number of that 73 that

          7  we have figure out to answer your and Council Member

          8  Fidler's question. That's why I'm hesitate to throw

          9  a number at you right now. But we can get that to

         10  you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. I would

         12  hope that at some point, you are going to sit down

         13  with the Chair of the Committee and the staff at

         14  some point in the next 30 days to try to bring a

         15  finite plan together so that the promise of the

         16  Commissioner can be kept that we have a solution to

         17  this that we can vote out by the end of the year.

         18  I'll leave it to Council Member McMahon and other

         19  members to go through the statistics where as my

         20  main focus is that a promise was made by the

         21  Commissioner to have a solution to this to vote by

         22  the end of the year.

         23                 I know I told my communities they

         24  could expect a solution or a plan that would bring

         25  some relief to these problems and I think in the
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          2  spirit of cooperation and understanding that there

          3  is a problem, I would hope that within a 30 day

          4  period we can come to some resolution. I'll be more

          5  than willing to change my schedule to sit down in

          6  meetings to make that happen, Mr. Chair. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you, Council

          8  Member Comrie. Next up is Council Member McMahon

          9  followed by Council Member Oddo.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chairman and Mr. LiMandri and Mr. Kramer. Thank

         12  you very much for coming. I do get from your

         13  testimony that you hear us at least and you

         14  understand it is a problem. I appreciate that. It is

         15  just we I think have a principal disagreement as to

         16  what the solution is. I want to send that message of

         17  thanks to Commissioner Lancaster and also since Ms.

         18  McKremitis (phonetic) is on your staff at the

         19  Department of Buildings, we've noticed an increase

         20  of things just being good. We want to send that as

         21  well.

         22                 Let me just understand this. The City

         23  of New York was incorporated in 1898. For nearly 100

         24  years, we did not have self- certification. The

         25  Empire State Building was built. The greatest number
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          2  of building that occurred in my borough, Staten

          3  Island, occurred before 1994 in terms of volume of

          4  new buildings; in terms of applications. We have had

          5  stadiums built and all these types of things built.

          6  We did not have self- certification. So somehow and

          7  oh, during that time, we were able to build

          8  hospitals, affordable housing and all of those

          9  things that you mentioned would go away if we don't

         10  have self- certification and the City would come to

         11  a grinding halt as I understood it. What happened in

         12  1994 and 1995 that all of a sudden we couldn't

         13  function as a City without this great panacea of

         14  professional self- certification?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I can't

         16  speak directly to the actual occurrence in 1995 of

         17  why it got to a point where they needed to do this

         18  program.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: I understand.

         20  But you describe it as if we do away with it, the

         21  City will cease to exist.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Well --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: However,

         24  cease to renew it itself and cease to provide for

         25  the neediest and cease to provide for its sick. Yet,
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          2  we did that for a 100 years. So why could we do it

          3  for 100 years without self- certification and now in

          4  the 21st century we can't do it. The City would come

          5  to a screeching halt.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I think

          7  you bring up a good point in that why couldn't we go

          8  back to life without professional certification. And

          9  there is no reason why we can't go there and talk

         10  about it and figure out if it is feasible. I do

         11  think that in the testimony what I was trying to do

         12  is discuss the ability for the Department to be able

         13  to manage that quickly if the Council had decided to

         14  do away with professional certification tomorrow.

         15  This would be a huge undertaking for the City

         16  financially and also operationally. I don't mean to

         17  say that we couldn't do it. I want you to understand

         18  that this would be a significant program for us to

         19  hire this sufficient resources, technical resources

         20  and absorb them in order to do away with the

         21  program. It is a significant task in the

         22  neighborhood of a couple of hundred people.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: That you have

         24  115 examiners now with some expansion with money

         25  provided for by the City Council which again, I know
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          2  we are happy to do. But this is sort of a basic City

          3  function that shouldn't have to be provided only if

          4  the City Council can rub the few nickels together to

          5  get it done. How many examiners were there in 1994

          6  before the advent of this program?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I don't

          8  have the stats from 1994.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: How about

         10  1995?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: No, I

         12  might have the stats from a couple of years ago. I

         13  don't have it from 1995.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: That doesn't

         15  help me because that's post self- certification.

         16  Where there more then or are there more now? Did the

         17  Department of Buildings move into bigger space or

         18  lesser space with the advent of self- certification?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I don't

         20  know the answer to that. I couldn't answer you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Is there

         22  anybody here with the institutional memory? Anybody

         23  been around that long? Mr. Kramer, have you been on

         24  staff since 1994?

         25                 MR. KRAMER: Not with the Department.
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          2  But I will tell you one thing that --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Somebody back

          4  there.

          5                 MR. KRAMER: I will tell you one thing

          6  that you know in many areas as in the zoning field,

          7  as well as the building code, life has gotten a lot

          8  more complex since the days of when the Empire State

          9  Building was built. I think you can look at the

         10  zoning resolution just for example as it was passed

         11  in 1961 and I stand one volume book where as now it

         12  is three volumes which are very heavy.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: All the more

         14  reasons to have experts reviewing plans as they are

         15  submitted to make sure that they are in compliance

         16  with those very valuable three volume texts.

         17                 MR. KRAMER: No, I think you're right.

         18  We do struggle with it, but it does require

         19  significantly more staff given I think the demands

         20  of the City and the demands of the citizens are much

         21  higher now because we have many more people living

         22  here. We have a whole different set of problems or

         23  perceived problems and I think --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: I understand

         25  that.
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          2                 MR. KRAMER: -- I'm basically in

          3  agreement with you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Let me ask

          5  you this. Both of you, if you could just wave your

          6  magic wand and create the best of all possible

          7  worlds, would the best of possible worlds be that

          8  every plan is reviewed by an examiner without

          9  professional self- certification? Forgetting the

         10  budget, would that be the best way to deal with

         11  building permits?

         12                 MR. KRAMER: As always on these things

         13   --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: I thought you

         15  were going to answer the question.

         16                 MR. KRAMER: The answer is, if you are

         17  willing with a world of infinite resources, of

         18  course, you are going to see a higher degree of

         19  compliance with code and a higher degree of

         20  compliance with zoning. When you make these

         21  decisions as you balance off inspectors and plan

         22  examiners versus teachers and fireman and policeman,

         23  those are the hard choices which we all are involved

         24  in. It essentially is a legislative political

         25  decision as to how you balance those two.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: I don't know

          3  if you would say, remember this can be a case of

          4  life and death. And certainly to the firefighters,

          5  to those firefighters who lost their lives it was a

          6  matter of life and death and if it is found out that

          7  those deaths were approximately caused because of

          8  self-certification, then we as a City have to say,

          9  wait a minute, we are not applying our resources

         10  adequately. So you are helping us though in our job

         11  because you are saying yes, it would be better if

         12  the Administration and the Council joined together

         13  and said this is a priority and this is what we

         14  should be doing. Then it would be better wouldn't it

         15  than to have self- certification would to be have

         16  the plans reviewed. Is that correct?

         17                 MR. KRAMER: I think that you would

         18  see a higher degree of compliance, but I think that

         19  we are -- I think the program which Commissioner

         20  LiMandri described of, for example, the zoning

         21  checks that we are now doing on let's say 100

         22  percent of the new buildings and alterations in the

         23  borough --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Let's talk

         25  about that.
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          2                 MR. KRAMER: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Obviously you

          4  felt that we have to do this because these people

          5  are not following the rules. We have to go back and

          6  although we don't have the people power to review

          7  everything and let's at least make sure they are

          8  compliant with the basic zoning laws, you had to

          9  realize that they are not compliant with the basic

         10  zoning laws and that's why you are doing it. Right?

         11  Because there wasn't compliance.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Yes,

         13  absolutely. And you know the worst thing is to get a

         14  call from your office or anyone around the table --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Or worse,

         16  from us.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: One of

         18  the reasons that we implemented the building

         19  information system on line was to make sure that all

         20  the stakeholders knew what was going on. This was

         21  the single most important thing that we did which

         22  was to tell the world, here is this zoning lot, here

         23  is this property. This is what's going on here and

         24  if you are interested or committed or you want to

         25  know, this is what is going to educate you to do
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          2  that. That said, there are 950,000 buildings in this

          3  City and it is important for us to deliver any

          4  resources that we can to be able to help us do our

          5  job.

          6                 For example, district managers are

          7  tremendous assets for us to focus our resources

          8  appropriately. And yes, we would love to have more

          9  resources and we would love to do away with certain

         10  issues, but what we would like to do is do it

         11  judiciously and figure out the best way to do it.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: In 1995, the

         13  City said, you know what, we're going to go on the

         14  cheap here. We're not going to have examiners look

         15  at this and we're going to do by self-

         16  certification. It's cheaper to do it that way. It's

         17  not the best way. But it's cheaper to do it that

         18  way. It is safe to assume that, isn't? You shook

         19  your head yes. Just say yes.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Yes,

         21  I'm sorry.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Let me ask

         23  you this. You said that of the 73,000 applications,

         24  47 percent are self- certified, the rest obviously

         25  are not. They are reviewed and approved by in- house
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          2  staff. How long do they take those applications?

          3  What is the turn around time for those applications

          4  that are not self- certified?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: It's a

          6  complex answer. And I'll try to do my best.

          7  Essentially what we do is we have implemented in the

          8  last two years, we have implemented the plan exam

          9  notification system where someone can dial in and

         10  make an appointment 24 hours a day, through 311.

         11  Those applications can get an average turn around

         12  time between, to get an appointment, between two and

         13  six days across the City. That said, the number of

         14  times that an applicant must come to see the

         15  Department and actually get that approval varies

         16  based on the complexity of the project, their

         17  ability to follow and administer the objections that

         18  we site. I can't give you a one set answer. But I

         19  can tell you that typically it takes two to six days

         20  to get an appointment with an examiner and there are

         21  multiple appointments depending on how deep or how

         22  complex the project is.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: But clearly

         24  it is expeditious. I'm not hearing about complaints

         25  from people saying that it takes too long when they
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          2  do go to self- certification.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: You

          4  might want to ask what the real- estate community

          5  thinks of the answer. I will tell you that it is a

          6  thousand times better than it was four years ago

          7  because you couldn't get an appointment.

          8  Essentially, what we have done is we have routinized

          9  it and automated it so that we are using our

         10  resources more efficiently. However, it depends on

         11  the applicant and how hard the project is and how

         12  competent they are and we are to actually deliver a

         13  competent plan, a compliant plan. It could take

         14  months.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: It can be

         16  done. It can be done. How many examiners would you

         17  need to do all of the applications that way? You

         18  have 115 now. You have 19 more coming. How many

         19  would you need to do the job that way without self-

         20  certification?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Why did

         22  I know you were going to ask me that question? I

         23  think we could look at that and we could give you a

         24  number.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Would you?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I can't

          3  give it to you right now.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Okay. I

          5  appreciate that. The Commissioner's philosophy, is

          6  it more important to have an expeditious process for

          7  the building and real estate community or is it more

          8  important to make sure that the final product is

          9  safe and reports with the law?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I think

         11  you're leading the witness.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: No. I gave

         13  you an either or. Which is more important?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: As you

         15  know, safety and compliance with the building code

         16  and zoning resolution is our first and foremost

         17  mission.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: And certainly

         19  that would be better achieved if every plan was

         20  reviewed by an in- house examiner.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I think

         22  you're leading the witness again.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: That's okay.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I would

         25  say you could say that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: I'm hoping

          3  you are saying that on behalf of the Commissioner.

          4  One area I would just like to go over with you is

          5  the notion and you kind of mixed the term a little

          6  bit of the right to self- certification and the

          7  privilege of self- certification. Clearly, self-

          8  certification is a privilege that is bestowed upon

          9  members of a certain profession. Right? It's not a

         10  right that's protected under any constitutional bill

         11  of rights or state constitution. It's not something

         12  that needs the same level of due process that a

         13  right does. It is a privilege. It is granted. And

         14  then you talked about, well there are certain things

         15  that happen and we want to make sure of due process

         16  because we're not sure if it is a minor infraction.

         17  I think maybe it could be a mistake. Maybe it

         18  couldn't be a mistake. Maybe it is an abuse. Where

         19  do you draw the difference?

         20                 As an example, if an architect or an

         21  engineer, misstates what the zoning is, is that a

         22  mistake? Is that an honest mistake? Or is an

         23  architect or engineer allowed to make such a mistake

         24  and still enjoy the privileges that he or she has

         25  under this program?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I think

          3  you hit on the exact issue of why we have enhanced

          4  and we have gone out and put together Rule 21. If

          5  you go through Rule 21, there are 14 conditions that

          6  basically put the architect or engineer on notice

          7  that include falsely identifying documents to the

          8  Department. It talks about whether they have lead

          9  the Department to believe inappropriate information

         10  based on their plans. The heart of the issue is to

         11  be able to succinctly identify for them what their

         12  issues are going to be and that they will have to go

         13  to OATH for us to revoke that privilege.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Why don't you

         15  just make a rule that says if you misstate the

         16  zoning resolution, the zoning of that project,

         17  you're out. If you don't do the due diligence to

         18  verify what the zoning is and unless you can show it

         19  was misstated on BIS or somewhere else, I know that

         20  can happen on occasion. But if you don't do the due

         21  diligence to find out what it is and you misstated,

         22  that's it, no more self- certification rights.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I will

         24  tell you that it is clear that --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: I mean these
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          2  are engineers and architects. If a doctor doesn't

          3  follow good and acceptable practices or if a lawyer

          4  does that, there is no case well I made a mistake

          5  because I didn't go look it up in the book. I didn't

          6  check the law, Your Honor. I don't understand and it

          7  is very frustrating as to why there isn't -- it is a

          8  privilege. If you do this, this and this, not two

          9  strikes you're out. You misstated the zoning. You

         10  submitted a document. You stamped it You swear that

         11  it was accurate and it is not. Why is there all this

         12  pussy footing around with the agents in this

         13  industry to try to give them more privileges than

         14  are comprehensible to us?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         16  Essentially, I hear what you are saying and we are

         17  not, if you were to say pussy footing around with

         18  this industry. The issue here is that as Steve had

         19  indicated, the zoning resolution is complex and

         20  there are terms that are very simple. So for

         21  example, in the auto pilot we're doing in Staten

         22  Island where we are checking for yards, square

         23  footage and issues of that sense and that nature and

         24  stating the zoning for that lot and block, I

         25  absolutely agree that it is much more black and
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          2  white than to discuss the issue of an interpretation

          3  with regard to how we are calculating a piece of

          4  floor area.

          5                 There are going to be areas where we

          6  are going to find that are very black and white and

          7  that are substantial. There are going to be other

          8  areas where it is substantially compliant --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: You mean to

         10   --

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: -- And

         12  that there are issues that it is what we would

         13  consider and I'm not suggesting what you just stated

         14  as administrative, but there are times where there

         15  are administrative errors that occur. And what we

         16  need to do is we need to make sure that we balance

         17  what we see come through.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: You mean that

         19  there are plans that are self- certified that have

         20  clear ambiguities as to what, I mean they are

         21  interpreting the law and the code and the zoning

         22  resolution. Things that are like subject to other

         23  interpretations and that's being self- certified by

         24  the Department of Buildings? You have got to be

         25  kidding.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: The

          3  Department of Buildings does not vary the zoning

          4  resolution. But there are points in time in the

          5  building code where it is not stated. The building

          6  code is a very old document. There are things that

          7  have changed over the years and there are times

          8  where the Department must look at new means and

          9  methods and new issues that come across the table

         10  that are not --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: So that means

         12  that are a lot of plans that have been self-

         13  certified that had they been looked at, the

         14  Buildings Department may have disagreed with the

         15  interpretations that were in those plans?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I can't

         17  answer that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: But you are

         19  indicating that that could be the case because you

         20  are saying there could be a mistake because they

         21  misinterpreted certain provisions and we would

         22  interpret differently based on all those factors you

         23  stated. So that means there must have been plans

         24  that were submitted that if someone from the

         25  Department looked at it, say wait, we don't
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          2  interpret that way.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I mean

          4  that certainly, what you have just stated certainly

          5  applies to your premise which says that we should

          6  look at everything. You are absolutely -- that's

          7  what you are suggesting. Right? Which says that

          8  every plan has to be looked at by one of us.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: But what you

         10  are saying is that there are plans that are self-

         11  certified that buildings are being built that

         12  contain ambiguities that had the Buildings

         13  Department looked at it, you would have interpreted

         14  it differently and not agreed with the professional

         15  who submitted those interpretations. That means that

         16  there are buildings built in my district right now

         17  that if someone from the Buildings Department looked

         18  at it, they wouldn't be built the way they are built

         19  right now.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Based

         21  on what we've seen in your tenure in your Staten

         22  Island, there have been cases that have been

         23  professionally certified and we disagree with what

         24  they have. Right?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: I certainly
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          2  don't catch them all.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: My

          4  point is, so based on that--

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: These guys

          6  don't catch them all. We try. This is why we all

          7  wear sneakers now to walk around the district

          8  chasing every dump truck.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Right.

         10  But based on that premise, I think you are

         11  absolutely talking about what could happen.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: No, but isn't

         13  safe to assume that has happened since 1995 that

         14  there are many cases where buildings were built and

         15  since there wasn't review, their interpretations

         16  that was solely the interpretations of an individual

         17  architect or engineer and had they been reviewed by

         18  the Department of Buildings, they would not have

         19  been approved?

         20                 MR. KRAMER: Perhaps I can help.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Please.

         22                 MR. KRAMER: I've been at the

         23  Department for four years. A little less than four

         24  years. I've sat in on numerous occasions where not

         25  just on professional certified plans, but also on
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          2  fully reviewed plans where different engineers and

          3  architects differ as to the meaning of the zoning

          4  resolution. I think less argument as to the meaning

          5  of the building code. But certainly in terms of the

          6  zoning resolution, it is an extraordinarily

          7  difficult document. Council Member Oddo, as I

          8  recall, brought one to our attention where in fact

          9  it was a reviewed plan. And there was this radical

         10  different interpretation where fighting at BAS,

         11  Board of Standards and Appeals, where we have former

         12  Commissioners of the Department of Building or First

         13  Deputy Commissioners on one side and other First

         14  Deputy Commissioners on another. This is not a black

         15  and white field.

         16                 But I think that what we have though

         17  is I think the district managers and either members

         18  of the Council and members of the public have been

         19  absolutely essential to us in identifying the more

         20  egregious issues. And I think the purpose --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: But had it

         22  not been for the district managers and the Council

         23  Members, a lot of these would have gone through.

         24  That's correct? They would have been built?

         25                 MR. KRAMER: It's true --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: In violation.

          3  And it is safe to assume that many were because they

          4  weren't caught by the district manager or a Council

          5  Member. That's incredible to me that there would be

          6  a gray area where an individual applicant could

          7  interpret the way he or she wants to the benefit of

          8  his or her client and that interpretation may not

          9  come under any review. If it is not examined by

         10  request, if it is self- certified and somebody

         11  doesn't grab it, then that means up goes the

         12  building.

         13                 MR. KRAMER: Professionals do disagree

         14  in this field. But there is a significant --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: I know I'm

         16  beating a dead horse. I think we know where we both

         17  are. But I think that gives further reason for the

         18  push that I want to make. I just have one last

         19  question. What other jurisdictions in any city or

         20  close to the size of New York City (none is), but

         21  what is significant city or municipality you know of

         22  also has self- certification?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I would

         24  have to get back to you because there are different

         25  cities that have similar programs and what I would
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          2  rather do is not tell you the specific city and I'd

          3  rather tell you the city and the program.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Could you do

          5  a review of that and let us know?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Sure.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Because in

          8  most places, you have design review. In fact, every

          9  plan is looked at and the design is gone over. The

         10  City doesn't have that. We have as of right building

         11  to the chagrin of all of us. And that's why to your

         12  point about buildings, some are not caught and they

         13  are built as of right and we all think, well at

         14  least the Buildings Department looked at that. We

         15  don't even know that anymore because it could have

         16  been self- certified. We'd like to know if you could

         17  let the Chairman know a review of similar

         18  jurisdictions what they do in this area. I can't

         19  imagine that -- I'll stop there. Okay.

         20                 MR. KRAMER: I do think it is

         21  important to remember that many cities in the United

         22  States, major cities, have had tremendous problems

         23  in administering their Building Department review. I

         24  remember reading the headline in last few years how

         25  the Mayor of Chicago was frustrated with the
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          2  incredible delays and his attempts to out source the

          3  reviews. It is very difficult partly because of the

          4  strength of the economy that we're in and architects

          5  and engineers are hard to find. And also because of

          6  simply competing resources.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: But I don't

          8  buy that strength of the economy because I know at

          9  least in our borough, more buildings were built in

         10  the mid 80's to early 90's than are being built now.

         11  So it works some how much to our chagrin again. It

         12  works. Something was working and I just think as I

         13  said in my opening that there has been a navigation

         14  of our responsibility to the City's quality of life.

         15  Sadly, as we learned in the Bronx also, to the life

         16  and safety especially of our emergency workers.

         17  Thank you. Mr. Chairman, thank you for your

         18  indulgence. The Committee Members, thank you for

         19  your patience.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you. Again,

         21  we would like to ask that you get the Committee that

         22  information as well as proposed Rule 21. The next

         23  Council Member will be Council Member Oddo followed

         24  by Council Member Mendez.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Chairman. I want to start out by saying I think

          3  someone should check with Lucifer to confirm that

          4  hell has frozen over because when I look at the

          5  faces of all the Council Members here, I'm the

          6  friendliest face that you guys are seeing.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Who

          8  would have thought?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Dtente, it is

         10  such a wonderful thing. I find your testimony and

         11  the questioning from Council Members McMahon and

         12  Fidler to have produced, I think, the most

         13  fundamental thing of this hearing. And that is you

         14  pick a Council Member, you hear a horror story about

         15  professional certification. You go to communities,

         16  the same thing. When you talk to the industry and

         17  I'll give you an example, a few months back I met

         18  with representatives of the AIA from each borough

         19  and they will tell you that this is a boggy man that

         20  we have created. It is an easy thing to beat upon

         21  whether it is for political expedience or we have

         22  just created this boggy man and everybody gets

         23  railed up when we hear professional certification.

         24                 If I take your testimony and your

         25  answers to questions posed by Council Members
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          2  McMahon and Fidler, it is a fact that the Department

          3  is now testifying that this really is a problem.

          4  Professional certification or compliance with

          5  professional certification is in fact a problem. I

          6  don't want to say that's a first. But I think that's

          7  the most fundamental thing we can get out of this

          8  hearing. That you as an agency recognize that what

          9  we're saying is not conjured up, but is in fact

         10  reality in our communities. Is that a fair

         11  assessment of what I've heard and listened too?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I would

         13  say that we have found since we have been here in

         14  this Administration that there have been

         15  transgressions in this field of professional

         16  certification that are beyond reproach. There are

         17  communities that have suffered through a process

         18  that's completely inappropriate. The Department

         19  realizes and knows and has examples where they want,

         20  we want to take action in this area and we are

         21  excited about being here today and talking about the

         22  program and trying to figure out a way to deal with

         23  this issue.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Just following

         25  up on Council Member McMahon's legislation and
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          2  comments. Have you as a Department had internal

          3  conversations? This is kind of kicking it around,

          4  throwing it up there and actually contemplated doing

          5  away with this program or has that even been part of

          6  the discussion?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: The way

          8  we have approached all of the, I'll call it the

          9  fixing of the Department, and we have been doing it

         10  for quite some time, four years now, is that we

         11  always look at the issues that are on the table, try

         12  to get an assessment of what we've got. We map

         13  processes like a typical consulting agent, a

         14  consultant would do; figure out the issues, identify

         15  the stakeholders and identify the risks and rewards

         16  with regard to a particular problem.

         17                 In the case of professional

         18  certification, we are in the throes of gathering

         19  data that will identify those very specific issues

         20  in those areas. We want to make sure that we don't

         21  come to a conclusion that is based on how we might

         22  feel or how loud someone may scream. The idea is to

         23  be able to identify what the issues are. If we do

         24  that in a methodical and data driven way, we believe

         25  that we will be able to come up with an answer.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Let's talk about

          3  that process. The pilot program in Staten Island has

          4  been in effect since May. Can you talk to us about

          5  some of the findings, some of the patterns? Is it

          6  too early? Can you --

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: In

          8  general, I will tell you that what we're hoping is

          9  that it is a bit too early, but what we have found

         10  is that there are a host of administrative and these

         11  are issues that we were kind of talking about with

         12  you, Council Member McMahon, which are not life

         13  threatening and they are not issues with regard to

         14  major zoning issues. These are things of business to

         15  be able to come down to two areas. One is, is where

         16  is the major transgressions which are, is it height,

         17  yard, set back. I mean we talk about this because if

         18  you are not from Staten Island, that's what we talk

         19  about. And try to identify what those areas are.

         20  Then we talk about the issues of who. And so being

         21  able to look at that and get that data is to be able

         22  to and then react to it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Just as on the

         24  side, when you respond to Council Member McMahon's

         25  question about how many inspectors you think it
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          2  would take if we did away with it. Can you also add

          3  in cost? Because you said it per allowance, OTPS or

          4  PS. Can you also add in space, cost and over all

          5  numbers so that we can have a general idea.

          6  Switching gears a little bit, do you believe that we

          7  have a legislative right or to restrict the

          8  privilege in self- certification? Do you believe as

          9  a body have the ability to do that?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: You just

         12  disagree --

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I would

         14  say that if we want to talk about a licensed

         15  engineers or architects behavior and ethics and the

         16  right to have that license and whether they can file

         17  in the City of New York that is a State discussion.

         18  But at the City level, the privilege of filing a

         19  professional certification is the Council's

         20  decision. What I would suggest is that whenever we

         21  look at this, the reason by putting the program in

         22  place being able to identify what comes out of that

         23  will give you information to be able to make a

         24  better decision.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: What does it
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          2  mean when a job is audited and it says it is audit

          3  conditionally accepted? What does that mean?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: That's

          5  where we have identified a list of objections. The

          6  applicant of record has come back and said, yes, I

          7  agree, yes, I agree. No, but can I do it this way

          8  and we come to an agreement. And based on that, we

          9  believe that they will go forward and when they

         10  apply all of those changes, they can actually

         11  satisfy the zoning resolution or the code.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: What does the

         13  internal investigative unit of the agency do? Is

         14  there such an entity?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: We have

         16  partnered with the Department of Investigation. We

         17  have a task force, the Building Investigation Unit.

         18  We call them BSIU. And specifically, on architects

         19  and engineers, they are the ones who take our

         20  referrals and investigate them and identify and get

         21  us the information to whether to prosecute at OATH

         22  or to refer to the State.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: But this is an

         24  entity within the agency? It's made up of people --

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: The
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          2  people that make up this unit actually, it is our

          3  personnel that are working at Department of

          4  Investigation.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: But to look at

          6  the behavior of other DOB employees?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: No, no.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: To look at the

          9  behavior --

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: No, I'm

         11  sorry. That's the behavior of architect and

         12  engineers. We also have an investigations, internal

         13  investigations unit about and they are housed under

         14  the Commissioner, not under me. They investigate our

         15  own employees and that's what we call IAD,

         16  investigation and discipline unit.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: One last line of

         18  questioning, Mr. Chairman, on page nine of your

         19  testimony, you said that you would welcome support

         20  of the Council if we were to reach out to the State

         21  Department of Education to let them know how serious

         22  of an issue it is. We will draft up language for the

         23  Speaker and the Chair of the Committee and all of

         24  our colleagues to sign on to in fact do that. The

         25  genesis of this and I remember it well as being a
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          2  staff person, the genesis of this is we are going to

          3  give you speed. That's the carrot. The speed and

          4  speed is money and time is money in the industry.

          5  But the stick is if you are bad boy and girl, you

          6  are going to get whacked on the knuckles like the

          7  nuns used to do to us back in the day.

          8                 How often do we see that? I mean, can

          9  you provide us with some numbers? How often do you

         10  recommend to the State or can you just walk us

         11  through the process and also, is it true, who has

         12  standing to reach out to the Department of

         13  Education? Can I complain about the performance of

         14  an architect or someone or does it have to come from

         15  a governmental entity?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: No.

         17  Absolutely, anyone can actually pick up the phone

         18  and call the Office of Professional Discipline as

         19  they can call DOI with regard to complaints, for

         20  example. And we can get you some other information.

         21  But for example, this year alone, up until August of

         22  this year, this investigation unit has completed 12

         23  investigations of engineers and 74 complaints of

         24  architects and we have 45 still open. That is the

         25  function that occurs not under my auspice, but at
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          2  Department of Investigation.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay. The

          4  percentages of jobs that have been professionally

          5  certified has increased from around 36.5 percent in

          6  fiscal year '02 and now you are up to 46. Do you

          7  have some internal estimates? Is there an end in

          8  sight? Is this going to continue to grow because of

          9  volume and for other reasons? And some of us would

         10  say from other nefarious reasons? Where does it end?

         11  Is 75 percent the end station here?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I think

         13  getting back to Council Member McMahon's issue which

         14  is like how many people do you need to do this if we

         15  want to get rid of it. Clearly, since we have been

         16  here from '02 to '04, you have to believe that one

         17  of the issues of rushing to vest has fueled this

         18  program. And so when architects and building owners

         19  or land owners want to develop and they want to make

         20  sure they can get something in the ground and start

         21  to build, clearly I think we have seen that has

         22  fueled some of this fire. We would also say that if

         23  you probably will talk to engineers and architects,

         24  some of them will tell you that they like it when

         25  the Department of Building reviews their plans.
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          2                 They like it when we give them an

          3  approval and so that may be something that you may

          4  want to investigate with regard to that. Property

          5  rights and building owner rights and this speed of

          6  capital, once a construction loan is identified or

          7  once someone takes hold of a property, every piece

          8  of this puzzle is important to them to make sure it

          9  happens quickly or else it adds cost to the project.

         10  It is not just the cost of doing of business with

         11  us, it is the cost of doing business with the DEP

         12  and DOT and all of the other areas of the City in

         13  addition to financing and title and all of those

         14  other issues for development cost.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I will just

         16  close by saying, in May we had a hearing of the task

         17  force in Council Member Vacca's district and they

         18  pounded the podium talking about professional

         19  certification. In June, we had a similar hearing out

         20  in Queens in Council Member Gallagher's district and

         21  they pounded the podium. Tonight, we will be out in

         22  Staten Island, the under and over is two and half

         23  minutes into the hearing before we hear the phrase

         24  self- certification.

         25                 Whether it is reality or not, the
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          2  perception in the public is that this is a broken

          3  system. And they have absolutely no confidence in

          4  the agency, frankly, mostly because of what they

          5  perceive. We have to change that if we ever going to

          6  change how they think before we even get to the

          7  substance. The substance is obvious, but the more

          8  subtle thing is there is a complete lack of

          9  confidence in this agency and I think it is based in

         10  large measure to the professional certification

         11  program that they think is broken and worse. I

         12  appreciate your indulgence, Mr. Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you, Council

         14  Member Oddo. Council Member Mendez followed by

         15  Council Member Nelson.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chair. I'll defer until my colleagues that introduce

         18  legislation asked their questions and then I'll ask

         19  my questions.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: You're deferring

         21  past Council Member Vacca. You understand that?

         22  Okay. Council Member Nelson followed by Vacca.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you,

         24  Council Member. Thank you, Mr. Chair. You are

         25  holding up with well with grace, I want to tell you.
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          2  And Jimmy showed constraint. This is an interesting

          3  hearing overall. The frustration from all of us is

          4  really borne from frustration. They are passionate

          5  questions actually borne out of frustration. We've

          6  all been bothered and hit and aggregated through the

          7  years about this. I was wondering if you could just

          8  briefly compare and contrast a Rule 21 with Intro

          9  299. Just quickly condense that if you could.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Just

         11  one second.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Sure.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: The

         14  probably best way is if we just could quickly go

         15  through 299 and then I can ad lib on the issues.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay. For the

         17  sake of expediency, maybe we can do that ourselves.

         18  We could thrash this about because I think it is

         19  pretty similar. But taking out of your testimony,

         20  you were talking about language not containing or

         21  knowing the negligence or incompetent standard, but

         22  actually it should be simplified if you are an inch

         23  out of compliance or two inches. Something that we

         24  can come out and definitely nail it down. But in

         25  truth, if you are even an inch out, you are out of
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          2  compliance with the zoning regulations, with self-

          3  certification.

          4                 We may tone it down to a certain

          5  degree if self- certification survives. I'm not sure

          6  where that is going. I wouldn't cry if it didn't

          7  survive, if the City could afford to do away with it

          8  and we'll leave that part of it with the dangers

          9  involved, with the potential loss of life may just

         10  knock out of the box as well. But what would you

         11  expect approximately and it is almost rhetorical.

         12  How many people would we find not properly self-

         13  certifying? Would it be that many that it would cost

         14  that many more members of the Department of

         15  Buildings to be out in the streets?

         16                 If we thought it would be ten percent

         17  or 20 percent or higher, that the Buildings

         18  Departments would be so swamped, that would actually

         19  mean that the problem is more systematic then we may

         20  even realize. So it is ironic how concerned we

         21  should really be with this. It is sort of like it

         22  would almost prove its own point the need for at

         23  least the two strikes and you're out and working on

         24  the parameters of that between Rule 21 and Intro

         25  299. Do you see what I'm saying? Would one expect
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          2  this to be so prolific that we would have a problem?

          3                 MR. KRAMER: I think we are in

          4  agreement that architects, engineers, professionals

          5  who are not reading the zoning resolution, the black

          6  and white issues of the zoning resolutions should

          7  not be allowed to continue in the program.

          8  Regardless, perhaps of how many additional examiners

          9  it takes. What we have done on an incremental basis

         10  and with your assistance is add staff. We have

         11  additional staff that we want to hire from what you

         12  gave to us in July. I think it is hard to predict in

         13  terms of the market --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Sure.

         15                 MR. KRAMER: -- Of whether or not we

         16  are going to see -- I mean we had an extraordinary

         17  number of applications last year and they keep

         18  growing and everybody keeps saying, the housing bust

         19  is about to come. Yet, in 1995, according to figures

         20  that I saw earlier this year, we issued, I think,

         21  permits for 5,000 units of housing. In 2005, we

         22  issued permits for 35,000 units of housing,

         23  approximately. Most people expect it to continue

         24  item for item, but it is very substantial. It is

         25  needed and it is needed, but it should be compliant
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          2  development. It should be compliant with zoning. It

          3  should be compliant with the building code. What we

          4  want to do is we want to hire the staff. You have

          5  given us the lines, we want to hire the staff and if

          6  it is not enough, we'll be back.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I don't know

          8  if the City could afford it actually to do away with

          9  it. We would have to be presented with the amounts

         10  and costs and so on. Just to a follow up to a

         11  Manhattan Beach question, there were over 50 homes

         12  that were out of whack, out of code. Some went from

         13   .5 to over one point and as you know, that's been a

         14  bone of contention for some time now. How it got to

         15  that point and now it is a crisis overall. I guess

         16  my question, those self- certifiers, whether they

         17  were architects, professional engineers,

         18  electricians, plumbers, chimney sweeps, and I'm

         19  still not quite sure exactly what is in that

         20  parameter, where any of them put on the carpet? Did

         21  any of them get into trouble? Were any of them told,

         22  we've had it with you?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I guess

         24  I'll answer that in that when we put the task force

         25  together and we basically sat in vehicles, the first
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          2  problem was to get them to stop working. We were

          3  effective to do that. In their minds, what they

          4  thought was, well, they will sit here a couple of

          5  weeks and then they will go away and then we can go

          6  back to doing what we do and we'll pay a couple of

          7  ECB fines and all will be done. That didn't happen.

          8  It required us to spend a whole lot of time there

          9  with attorneys and our inspectors and architects and

         10  we are still in the program. We have been doing this

         11  for almost a year now. But essentially, I will tell

         12  you that we are not done. I can tell you that there

         13  are nine homes that are in deconstruction; meaning

         14  that they were too tall and that they are getting

         15  smaller.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: The 35 feet,

         17  yes.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: That's

         19  right. There are three home owners that were

         20  attempted to give our inspector a bribe to go turn

         21  the cheek and they have been arrested and if

         22  convicted, they will spend seven years in prison.

         23  We're not done in that community. We know that in

         24  that community things are different because of just

         25  those two things we've done. There are other players
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          2  in that and I really can't discuss the future plans

          3  of that project.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Sure. I can

          5  appreciate that. I'm glad to hear that some of this

          6  activity is taking place and it is still as ongoing

          7  as well. I'm glad. I just think that some of the

          8  self- certifiers, professional or otherwise,

          9  whatever it is, is just laughing all the way to the

         10  bank. It would be really difficult to swallow.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Well, I

         12  think you bring up the bank which we have a

         13  transgressor who was very active who has surrendered

         14  their privileges and there is word on the street

         15  that the banks are not going to permit those

         16  projects unless we review those plans. So it is a

         17  wake up call to not only the filer, but also the

         18  people that work with the filer and there is a whole

         19  host of people that do that. You bring up a good

         20  point. I will tell you that it is a different world

         21  than it was a year and a half ago for these guys.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Good. I

         23  appreciate that. Thank you and thank you, Mr. Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you. Council

         25  Member Vacca followed by Mendez.

                                                            96

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Thank you, Mr.

          3  Chair and thank you, Mr. LiMandri for your

          4  testimony. In listening to the discussion of self-

          5  certification, I have to tell you that I see that we

          6  may be in the same church, but a different pew. I

          7  feel from listening to you that there is movement.

          8  Not enough movement. I'm going to place it in

          9  context. The Buildings Department was a second

         10  fiddle agency until about four, five years ago. For

         11  years, I was a district manager for a community

         12  board for 26 years.

         13                 The Buildings Department was not

         14  really considered a priority in the City. Many of us

         15  on this Council and I'm only here seven months, but

         16  many of us have made the Buildings Department a

         17  priority. You are a priority with us. Because we've

         18  seen what's happened when you are not a priority.

         19  We've seen too much. Too many mistakes, too many

         20  problems.

         21                 I do want you to go back, if you can,

         22  and do an analysis regarding the self- certification

         23  because we at this table have been talking about

         24  architects and engineers and we have not mentioned

         25  the word expeditor. They are the ones doing the
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          2  self- certification. In many occasions, they do it,

          3  an architect signs off. But the architect, how

          4  intimately involved is that architect in drawing up

          5  the plans. You and I don't know. You and I don't

          6  know. They sign off legally that requirement is

          7  filled. I think a predominance of those problems

          8  have occurred in our five districts and below.

          9  That's where they have occurred.

         10                 If your study bears that out, I too

         11  understand that Alt 1's, Alt 2's, and decks, minor

         12  alterations may be self- certified without there

         13  being an issue. But I think if we start making

         14  exemptions like that, the patio and the deck, but

         15  that we say that a predominance of our problems is

         16  in the R5 or district below, R4, R3, R2, if those

         17  are the predominant of the problems, then we have to

         18  take those areas out of the self- certification

         19  process unless we have minor objections. There is an

         20  accountability issue.  The people have a right to

         21  hold accountable a City agency rather than saying we

         22  have to find out who filed plans and did that person

         23  really go analysis by analysis or did someone else

         24  do an analysis and that person signed off.

         25                 I bring that because I think the
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          2  legislation we have before us today is not

          3  legislation that should be discarded. It may be

          4  something we pass in total. I think that the

          5  position of your agency is not far off and I think

          6  that if we did that analysis, what I'm saying is

          7  true, you will find that most of the problems with

          8  the self- certification are in R5's or R4's, or

          9  below and then perhaps we can come to an agreement.

         10  Is that something that's a possibility with your

         11  agency?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Well,

         13  what we do as another Council person asked before is

         14  to give us a list of the 73,000 permits, what types

         15  of work, but we can also look in what areas and we

         16  can also look at perhaps where the transgressions

         17  have been in what districts. I will tell you that

         18  this hearing is just about professional

         19  certification. But you touch on a point which says

         20  there are many different parties involved in the

         21  equation and we can't just look at this one

         22  particular area. And you are correct in that the

         23  agency is at the forefront of everyone's mind and it

         24  has been supported by the Mayor in that, for

         25  example, we have received over 400 additional
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          2  employees in the last five years. Essentially and in

          3  addition to that, millions of dollars in technology

          4  and for example, cars. All of these things are

          5  important.

          6                 I will say that there are other

          7  pieces of this puzzle. So, for example, we have

          8  identified a rule for excavation. This has to do

          9  with notifying the Department when someone digs and

         10  that we can go out and inspect. We have the rule

         11  that we talked about today which deals with

         12  professional certification. We also have a rule on

         13  construction superintendents. There is discussion of

         14  GC licensing. All of those areas are areas that are

         15  important to us. And those are just in the

         16  legislative area. Backing that up with transparency,

         17  a new project that we're coming out with which we

         18  call, My Community, where you as a leader of a

         19  neighborhood will actually be able to see when

         20  demolitions are pulled in your neighborhood or when

         21  new buildings are pulled in your neighborhood to

         22  give you a real time look at it.

         23                 We're committed to using any group of

         24  people, any stakeholder to watch the others and

         25  that's the key to make sure a construction project
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          2  takes hold and does it right. You have an owner. You

          3  have a contractor. You have subs. And then you have

          4  stakeholders in the community. You had elected,

          5  civic groups, and you have community board members.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: I think much of

          7  the problem is that the Buildings Department over

          8  the years is never had the resources to be

          9  proactive, but had to be reactive. You act upon

         10  complaints. And when you act upon complaints, you're

         11  not performing regular inspections of new

         12  construction. Therefore, we wait until someone comes

         13  forth, Be it the elected official of a community

         14  board and so I do know it is a question of

         15  resources.

         16                 My next point was on my legislation

         17  and your objection to the second piece of

         18  legislation says that you do not want to suspend

         19  self- certification unless there is evidence that

         20  there was knowingly or that the application was

         21  knowingly or negligently submitted. I wanted to come

         22  back to this because we thought of this when I

         23  developed the legislation and how do we know whether

         24  or not a person knowingly and negligently submitted

         25  it however with the three strikes provision. If I
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          2  were the applicant and I was struck down twice under

          3  self- certification, I wouldn't take the risk of

          4  having my stupidity exposed again or my mal- intent,

          5  whatever the case may be. I would say, third strike

          6  and I'm out. Let me file. Let me not go to self-

          7  certification. That's the intent of my legislation

          8  because we have no way of judging whether a person

          9  has mal- intent or not. We're not there when they

         10  file plans. We don't know what's in their mind. What

         11  you are suggesting is difficult to attain.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: What

         13  you are suggesting is that you increase the level of

         14  scrutiny on one side and push out the guys who don't

         15  want to maintain that scrutiny and make them go

         16  through the Department?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: That's what my

         18  legislation would do.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         20  Interestingly.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: You would push

         22  out those who don't want to take the risk of having

         23  the third offense. They would now know to go through

         24  the process or they wouldn't file. My area was down

         25  zoned through contextual zoning. I have architects
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          2  in Long Island and Putnam all filing applications in

          3  my district. They have no idea what contextual

          4  zoning is and what it means. Therefore, if they do

          5  it twice and they are exposed, they are not going to

          6  do the third time or they are going to understand

          7  what contextual zoning is. That's the purpose of the

          8  legislation.

          9                 I want you to reconsider your

         10  objection. Because I think that would put a handle

         11  on it. Absence its elimination which I agree with

         12  Council Member McMahon and my colleagues, it should

         13  be eliminated. But absent that. We have to look an

         14  attack. The attack has got to be where is the

         15  prevalence of the self- certification violations.

         16  The attack has got to be that we send a message in

         17  law of what our expectations are. We've certainly

         18  have had a history that would mitigate us sending

         19  that type of a message.

         20                 My last statement to you was that and

         21  very quickly, I have to tell you that I noticed in

         22  the past six months, I'm on the BIS system every

         23  day. I check demolitions. I check new permits, Alt 1

         24  or 2. I check everything. I want to you know that I

         25  do think the response is getting better. I do think
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          2  because many things that I would e- mail and object

          3  to, the Buildings Department rejects before I get to

          4  it. I think that's getting better. But I do think

          5  that we have a long way to go.

          6                 We're talking about safety. We're

          7  talking about neighborhoods. We're talking about

          8  things that go up and by the time we realize that

          9  things have gone so far, that now people have

         10  another issue to face in the neighborhood. I hope

         11  you will consider your objection to my second piece

         12  of legislation. I thank you for the support of the

         13  first piece and I think that we have room to really

         14  modify self- certification significantly until we

         15  totally get rid of it. Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Council Member

         17  Mendez.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you. I

         19  wanted to ask the Department what procedural steps

         20  the Department has when an audit fails and you have

         21  any kind of data base to track such failures and who

         22  made them.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I'm

         24  sorry. Could you repeat that question? I apologize.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: What
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          2  procedural steps the Department has to track

          3  failures of plans that was self- certified? Is there

          4  a database and can you track who has failed, the

          5  individuals who has failed on these self- certified

          6  plans?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: You are

          8  asking for a global view of the failures and we

          9  don't have a data base that pulls that from a global

         10  stance. We can see on an individual basis, but we

         11  don't have a global view.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Do you have a

         13  number of how many self- certified plans actually do

         14  fail?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I can

         16  get that to you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Your testimony

         18  and your issues with some of the legislation is that

         19  there is some errors that are minor or matters of

         20  interpretation. But there are some mistakes that are

         21  really egregious. Is there any way to distinguish in

         22  the way of a severity of an oversight made by an

         23  architect or engineer who self- certifies?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Is

         25  there a way to distinguish the difference? Yes. When
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          2  plan examiners, our borough commissioners, our

          3  technical auditors, when they review plans, when you

          4  review the objection sheets, it becomes pretty clear

          5  to most of the people that work for us what's minor

          6  and what's major. When we say minor, we're talking

          7  about things that are what we would consider

          8  administrative. Things such as we are missing a

          9  piece of information that does not necessarily mean

         10  that it's absolutely wrong, for example. It just

         11  means that we need another piece of information to

         12  be able to approve the document. That would be an

         13  example of something that's minor. There is an issue

         14  that we want to be able to say that we understand,

         15  but it does not necessarily mean it's a major zoning

         16  infraction.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Is there a

         18  method to handle repeat offenders?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: We have

         20  a team of individuals that go forward and review

         21  through a centralized format to be able to discuss

         22  issues that come up and actually review the types of

         23  infractions that we identify and then start an

         24  investigation of those.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Is there a way
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          2  to automatically audit these repeat offenders at the

          3  moment?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

          5  Automatic in what do you mean?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Well, if a

          7  self- certification plan is filed, there has been

          8  previous complaints against the architect, the

          9  developer, anyone associated with the project, is

         10  there a way of auditing self- certification by your

         11  Department?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: We can

         13  do that. Today, we utilize many different inputs. So

         14  we get input from the complaint areas. We also get

         15  input from what the plan examiners and what the

         16  borough commissioners see on the ground. We also get

         17  data. We run reports to be able to identify. But

         18  there is no automatic trigger that says you've done

         19  this number of transgressions and it automatically

         20  puts you in a pool for pushing out of the program.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: I was at a

         22  hearing that the various committees of the State

         23  Assembly had on September 7, and the State

         24  Department of Education testified that day that it

         25  has only received 132 complaints in the last ten
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          2  years from the Department of Buildings. Your

          3  testimony says that you currently exchange

          4  information on a regular basis with the State

          5  Department of Education. Is that number correct and

          6  if it is not what is the number?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I will

          8  have to get back to you on what the actual number

          9  is.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: So you have no

         11  idea like for this year what the number of

         12  complaints are that you've referred to the State

         13  Department of Education?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I don't

         15  have that number with me.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: How many

         17  architects/engineers have had their self-

         18  certification privileges revoked?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Since

         20  2002, hold on one second. I'm sorry, since 2004,

         21  there were 13 professionals that were disciplined

         22  and out of that 13, there were a myriad of whether

         23  they were suspended or revoked or placed on

         24  suspension.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Suspended,
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          2  revoked or --

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

          4  Probation.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Or probation.

          6  One of the things that I see in my district and I'm

          7  sure my colleagues can you tell is that I see repeat

          8  offenders all the time. Certainly, the penalties

          9  that are out there are not severe enough to

         10  discourage them and prevent the abuse.  You are

         11  taking some measures and you have talked about some

         12  measures that the Department is taking, what other

         13  kind of penalties can we put on these repeat

         14  offenders to discourage set abuse?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Well,

         16  you described the State hearing. I think we look at

         17  it in two different ways. There is what can I do at

         18  the City level. Revoking privileges is one area that

         19  all of you are very interested in doing. But

         20  whenever we investigate someone on a particular

         21  issue, it is likely that there are other issues that

         22  they transgress on as well. Our thought would be is

         23  that there would be some discussion at the State

         24  level of what legislation or what can be done at

         25  that level in order to allow people to take us
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          2  seriously when we do an investigation and when we

          3  revoke someone's privileges. Revoking privileges,

          4  suspending privileges, probation, it all sounds

          5  really good and important.

          6                 However, there is another level of

          7  enforcement that can be taken that is not monetary

          8  and fines. All of you know that we are always

          9  looking for resources and we're always looking for

         10  tools for enforcement and the tools for enforcement

         11  would be the area that we continue to ask for the

         12  City and the State legislature. We have made a

         13  commitment to the State to give them -- we talked

         14  about some things in the hearing that we think

         15  should be considered and we would ask that you would

         16  back us up on that as well.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: In my district

         18  and in other districts, I've personally experienced

         19  where certain plans were filed, they were later

         20  amended and buildings were built that were out of

         21  scale and actually did not comply with the code. I

         22  know of one such case where the Department has gone

         23  back and asked the developer to take off floors and

         24  certainly that's a tool the Department has

         25  available. In my district, that tool was not used.
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          2  How many times has something like this happened and

          3  how many times have you used such tools against

          4  certain projects in this City?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I can't

          6  give you the number of buildings that have been

          7  taken down. As you know, through due process and

          8  through the court of law, that is something that is

          9  a time consuming process in which we go for if we

         10  can't come to some other resolution.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: There has been

         12  a couple of things I have asked for and you didn't

         13  have the numbers available. Will you get that to

         14  this Committee and to me at another date?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Yes, I

         16  will. We have staff taking notes of all of you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: My staff has

         18  become like virtual mini DOB inspectors in my

         19  district.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Thank

         21  you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Well, they

         23  certainly don't get paid enough right now to do the

         24  job they do do in addition to their new

         25  responsibilities as DOB inspectors. But given that
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          2  community activists, elected officials, and so many

          3  residents frequently act as a first line of defense,

          4  what can DOB do to aid communities in uncovering

          5  possible dangerous and illegal conditions?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Don't

          7  yell at me when I say this. But certainly there are

          8  two pieces. One is that we do want you to continue

          9  to call 311 and the reason we say that is because

         10  through the City Council, we have been afforded

         11  overtime for a weekend and evening inspections with

         12  regard to complaints. We're focusing on construction

         13  whether it is work without a permit or work without

         14  a variance. In the past, the complaint has been, we

         15  call, you come four days later or 40 days later,

         16  it's not good enough. You can't catch them in the

         17  act. What we have needed to do is actually put those

         18  inspectors on the ground when you call.

         19                 The overall reaction by the

         20  construction community is and we have done this in

         21  cranes as well, for example, they are actually

         22  shocked when we show up. That said, we have issued,

         23  if you can give me one second, we've issued a

         24  tremendous number of violations and stop work orders

         25  with regard to this program and this program has
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          2  been running since May. The idea here is that our

          3  whole premise is to be somewhere, but them to never

          4  know where at every turn. The idea being is that

          5  what we want to do is we want to make sure that we

          6  can get there on time.

          7                 The first thing is we issued 324

          8  violations and 153 stop work orders and that program

          9  was from, there were two pieces of it that we ran

         10  basically through the summer which is the high point

         11  of construction. The second piece that I would say,

         12  if you would sign up on our website which is for our

         13  notifications that go out once a week, you will be

         14  afforded a single web page that you don't have to

         15  negotiate through all the data that we provide to

         16  you today in a very simple format which we call, My

         17  Community.

         18                 My Community will allow your staff to

         19  be able to look at just your community board and

         20  look at what's going on, on a real time basis and

         21  that would be another tool that your staff or your

         22  civic groups that are involved that want to know

         23  what's going in their neighborhood. I can't tell you

         24  how important it is for us to utilize them to be

         25  able to be our eyes and ears. That would be the
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          2  other thing.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: I understand

          4  from a meeting I recently had with the Manhattan

          5  Commissioner and I applaud DOB's recent efforts that

          6  you are auditing all self- certified plans in the

          7  outer boroughs. Is that correct? Again, I applaud

          8  that. And I would like to know when are you going to

          9  start auditing all self- certified plans in

         10  Manhattan?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: In May

         12  we started with Staten Island. We piloted the

         13  program. We got enough information to figure out how

         14  to do it in the other three boroughs and later this

         15  winter, we expect to be able to collect this data,

         16  look at it and then figure out if it is possible to

         17  do this in Manhattan. The one thing that I would say

         18  to you is that the difference is in the other four

         19  boroughs versus Manhattan are different. Today,

         20  we're talking about alteration type 1 and new

         21  buildings.

         22                 We may want to do something different

         23  in self- certification for Manhattan and this has to

         24  do with the building stock, the caliber of

         25  professionals that are filing and the types of
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          2  things that they are filing. I wouldn't rush to

          3  judgment to say that we should be doing 100 percent

          4  in new buildings and alteration type 1's. Again,

          5  what we would like to do is pilot something, look at

          6  the data, and then use that information to be able

          7  to strategically figure out how we should do it

          8  there. I would say later this winter we will have an

          9  answer.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Seventy- three

         11  thousand applications probably sound likes a

         12  daunting number and with 50 percent of that being

         13  self- certified. I do think that if we pass some of

         14  this legislation here today, individuals will be

         15  more thoughtful about the plans that they are

         16  applying for and would take more caution and be more

         17  prepared when they file their plans and wouldn't

         18  make some so called minor mistakes. I just have one

         19  last question because it sort of scares me that

         20  there is a program or tool named PLUTO. Is it a real

         21  tool or are we going to find out months or years

         22  from now that it really wasn't a tool at all?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I would

         24  never be here and announce it to you if I didn't

         25  think we actually could make it work. I figured out
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          2  very clearly that sometimes planets and moons turn

          3  into other things. But I will tell you that we are

          4  confident that it will be a tool that we can use and

          5  that we plan to use it and we've gotten a commitment

          6  from City Planning. I expect to be able to deliver.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Mr. Chair,

         10  just for a point of information, if I may. I wanted

         11  to make a PLUTO joke and I couldn't figure out how

         12  to do it. I commend you Council Member Mendez for

         13  doing it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: No PLUTO jokes

         15  because the first one I actually told to Ben hours

         16  ago when I decided not to do it and I'm glad I

         17  wasn't the one to do it. But I do know that PLUTO in

         18  this instance does exist. Council Member White. Or

         19  exist in the form that they say it does.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Chair. Commissioner, I want to applaud my colleague,

         22  Council Member Vacca for forwarding the legislation.

         23  But I'm having a problem really in my district and

         24  maybe I don't know. I see like a block and lot that

         25  is set up for a one family home. Somebody buys that
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          2  home and all of sudden you put three two family

          3  homes and within that same block and lot. Is that

          4  correct?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I think

          6  you sort of hit on the point which we really didn't

          7  discuss here today which is one of the reasons we're

          8  having this discussion is there have been projects

          9  in all of your communities that are not appropriate

         10  and that are not according to the zoning. There has

         11  also been many projects that are as of right and as

         12  per the zoning and people don't like it in your

         13  communities. I don't know the particular district

         14  you are talking about.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: District 28 in

         16  Queens.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Right.

         18  What we would need to do is we would need to get the

         19  address of that property, look at the zoning

         20  district and then we can give you an answer to that.

         21  Because there are many different districts in

         22  District 28 and we couldn't answer that off the top

         23  of our heads. I will tell you that the issue of what

         24  you can build on a particular lot, one of the major

         25  issues that City Planning has been working on is to
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          2  review what the current zoning is of each of these

          3  neighborhoods and then also looking at how it is

          4  currently built and working with the community to

          5  decide going forward. How does that community want

          6  that to be, whether it is preserved, up zoned or

          7  down zoned.

          8                 I will tell you that one of the

          9  reasons why we are front and center today is that

         10  there are many developments that are as per right

         11  and as per zoning and people don't like it and they

         12  use the Buildings Department to get in the way to

         13  slow it down. At the end of the day, it is still

         14  okay and it is still correct and they are still

         15  allowed to build it. What we can do, afterwards we

         16  can take the address, we can look at it and we can

         17  give you an opinion whether it is professionally

         18  certified or not. We can review it and tell you what

         19  you can build there.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay. Now there

         21  is a, I don't know whether it is a two family lot. I

         22  know that it has six meters. I know that the asking

         23  price was $450,000. The width of that house was the

         24  width of that door. That door right back there. The

         25  length of that house was from here to there. I don't
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          2  even know how anybody could live in that house.

          3  Pastor Brown from Bethany Baptist Church came to me

          4  and had me look at that house. I stood there and I

          5  put my arms out like this and it was the width of my

          6  arms. It had a number on it. The numbers you put up

          7  for construction, permit number, et cetera, et

          8  cetera, et cetera. I don't even know how that could

          9  have been built. That's on 159th Street and 111th

         10  Avenue.

         11                 The other place is, that I don't

         12  know, is 140th Avenue and Guy Arbor Boulevard

         13  (phonetic).  There used to be a gas station. Within

         14  30 days, all of a sudden, there was a two-family

         15  house. Now, I don't know whether or not that ground

         16  was surveyed or sampled to see whether or not it was

         17  appropriate to build on land that used to be a gas

         18  station. I don't know whether or not the tanks,

         19  whether they were leaking and they took them out.

         20  But I do know one thing, that if people whoever

         21  lives in there if those things have not been done,

         22  somebody is going to get sick down the road.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         24  Afterwards, we will come and we get the addresses.

         25  We will look at it and certainly what we can do is
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          2  one, make sure it is built per the zoning and two,

          3  to make sure that the appropriate filings to DEC,

          4  the State, et cetera, to deal with the tanks. We

          5  certainly can do that. That's not a problem.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: And also, he's

          7  not here, my colleague, Council Member Comrie has a

          8  project in his district on the East Side of Guy

          9  Arbor Boulevard and Fotch (phonetic), which used to

         10  be the Carmichael's Gas Station where they are

         11  building something there. We don't know what. It is

         12  all banded up. But I share the line across the

         13  street, and we'd like to know what's going on.  And

         14  I think that at the last meeting you had or one of

         15  the previous meetings you had when we had the

         16  Commissioner here, we were dealing with

         17  self-certification and the fact that I believe there

         18  was a reduction of inspectors in the fiscal year

         19  moving forward for this current year.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: They

         21  were restored. There were four. They were restored.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay. The mere

         23  fact that it even was thought about to reduce them

         24  based on what's going on and then I believe, there

         25  was an issue whereby if a building was built, it was
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          2  like what can we do about it. It is up. And the

          3  other issue, is these mortgage companies that are

          4  able to get mortgage for these homes that don't have

          5  the proper or have questionable certifications to

          6  them and the mortgage companies can go to the banks

          7  and get a mortgage for that building. It just

          8  doesn't make sense. We have a lot of that in the

          9  district in terms of people losing their homes

         10  because the cost of the homes have been inflated. If

         11  I buy a home for $200,000, I can ask them to come

         12  and buy it from me the next day for $400,000, then

         13  the price for all those homes in the area will go up

         14  to $400,000.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: I know

         16  the affordability of homes is tremendous. In fact

         17  today, the borough president of Queens had a summit

         18  on affordable housing and it definitely is an issue.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: I think that

         20  the Buildings Department plays a very important part

         21  in that issue because in building anything in the

         22  certification not only justifies the home, but the

         23  quality of the material that goes into that home.

         24  Supposedly that home had let's say, it has three

         25  inches of plywood, but I built it with one inch
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          2  plywood. Supposedly the cement was suppose to be of

          3  a certain texture and mixture and weight for the

          4  foundation, who tests that to see that it that's

          5  done. All we see is the end results of a house. I

          6  see a driveway where somebody has got to take their

          7  car and go over like a bump to hit the chassis of

          8  the bottom of their car to get into a garage. I'm

          9  not an architect. But you can see certain things.

         10  And I relay upon you. My community relies upon you.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:

         12  Absolutely.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: To see that

         14  these things are done properly.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: If the

         16  construction is not built according to plan and they

         17  use the wrong kind of plywood, those are issues that

         18  we deal with on an everyday basis. Absolutely.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: We will have

         20  conversation. I'm not looking to be adversarial, but

         21  I must represent my district and what I'm saying is

         22  that I want to build a working relationship with you

         23  because we want our community to be contiguous with

         24  how the structure is where we are not opposed to

         25  homes being built and improving our community. But
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          2  we also have to take into consideration that the

          3  impact of building x amount of homes in an area

          4  impacts schools, impact how many sanitation trucks

          5  you need, overcrowding of schools, convenience

          6  stores. A lot of things that are not taken into

          7  consideration when somebody comes and decides that

          8  they are going to build a thousand unit of homes in

          9  a given area, the sewer system. The fact that I have

         10  a low water table and it is a flooded area, they are

         11  connecting all these homes into a system that is not

         12  built to carry that many.

         13                 These are the things I think, Mr.

         14  Chairman, are really my concerns. And it probably

         15  happens all over the City and then what happens is

         16  you get these sewer tops popping up all over the

         17  place. And people stepping into water and getting

         18  electrical shock because the plans are not plans. It

         19  is just the house are plans. The unit is plan. But

         20  it is not in terms of the planning for the

         21  community. We have to do a wholesome approach in

         22  terms of planning and building and not the shotgun

         23  approach. That's my recommendation to you and to the

         24  Chair. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you, Council
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          2  Member White. I will end with just two very brief

          3  questions and I appreciate that you gentlemen have

          4  been very patient with this Committee and sat for a

          5  quite a deal of time and I ask them and release you

          6  as soon as they are answered. What role does the

          7  Office of Administrative Trials and Hearings have in

          8  the disciplinary process and I'll combine my

          9  question. In the past five years, how many engineers

         10  or PE's or RA's were referred to OATH for

         11  disciplinary action and who handles the prosecution

         12  of these disciplinary matters? Does DOB handle this

         13  with their in- house enforcement attorneys or do

         14  they refer it to the court counsel?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: The

         16  Office of OATH, the OATH trial is where we bring

         17  actions against architects and engineers to take

         18  away their privileges or revoke them or suspend

         19  them. Many times architects and engineers based on

         20  what they see, they actually surrender prior to

         21  going to OATH. In essence, we don't actually take it

         22  away. They withdraw from the program. They say,

         23  we're not going to do it anymore. We will go through

         24  normal plan exam and we don't have to go through an

         25  OATH trial.
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          2                 When we do go through an OATH trial,

          3  we have personnel detailed to the Department of

          4  Investigation and they are the ones that do the

          5  investigation and actually go to the OATH tribunal.

          6  The OATH judge will listen to what we say and, of

          7  course, what the architect or engineer of record

          8  says and makes a determination. I'm not sure, did I

          9  answer all the questions? Oh, the other one was the

         10  number of -- I don't have that with me, but I'm sure

         11  we've taken the note and we can get that to you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Finally, how are

         13  disciplinary matters handled? Is it handled within

         14  DOB or is it sent over to court counsel?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: No, we

         16  go ahead and we do an initial review, put together a

         17  package and then we supply that to our investigation

         18  units. Not under DOB auspices.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: And then finally,

         20  what is Directive 14 and does Directive 14 still

         21  apply and I guess if it does still apply, are there

         22  any differences in professional certification

         23  process for Directive 14 applications and if so,

         24  please describe them.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI:
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          2  Directive 14 is a way to file with the Department

          3  where we review the plans. We do review for certain

          4  issues. For example, for egress, for use, for

          5  safety, those types of issues. However, the

          6  architect or engineer of record is telling us that

          7  it is basically a hybrid. They are professionally

          8  certifying to us that they have done everything in

          9  accord with the zoning resolution and billing code

         10  and the Department takes an added role of reviewing

         11  those plans for certain issues and allows them to

         12  file. In essence, it is not a full plan review. It

         13  is a limited supervisory check where we actually

         14  look for things, but not everything.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: But it is still in

         16  effect? It is still used?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: It is

         18  still used and it is still in effect, yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: What happens if a

         20  professional performs a controlled inspection to

         21  sign off on Directive 14 where there are changes to

         22  the original that are not reflected on the amended

         23  plan?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: They

         25  are required to file additional plans to tell us
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          2  what the changes were.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: I want to thank

          4  you. I want to thank you especially for your

          5  patience. I allowed my colleagues to go on very long

          6  and I did it intentionally because this is an issue

          7  that my Committee, quite frankly, if I had to pole

          8  my members, it would have their number one issue. I

          9  wanted each and every one of them to air out their

         10  questions and concerns and I thank you for being

         11  extremely patient with this Committee and then we

         12  look forward to communicating with the Department on

         13  Buildings on how the Committee will proceed on these

         14  matters. Thank you very much.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIMANDRI: Thank

         16  you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Next we will hear

         18  from Mr. Eddie Boles from the Uniform Fire Officer's

         19  Association, Local 845. And maybe if you could just

         20  allow them a second to exit and then you could come

         21  and sit and then as soon as it settles down, you can

         22  begin. Mr. Boles, you may begin. Push the button.

         23                 MR. BOLES: Good afternoon.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Even though I have

         25  introduced you, you do have to state your name for
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          2  the record.

          3                 MR. BOLES: Good afternoon, Chairman

          4  Dilan and the members of the Committee. My name is

          5  Lieutenants' Representative Eddie Boles and I am

          6  speaking on behalf of Peter Gorman, President of the

          7  Uniformed Fire Officers Association, representing

          8  Lieutenants, Captains, Battalion Chiefs, Deputy

          9  Chiefs, Medical Officers and Supervising Fire

         10  Marshals of the FDNY.

         11                 Before I start my testimony, I just

         12  want to personally thank City Council for their

         13  condolences and support from our recent loss. We

         14  greatly appreciate it and, of course, the families

         15  greatly appreciate it. I testify before you today

         16  with a heavy heart. It was only a few weeks ago that

         17  we buried two of our brother firefighters; Lt.

         18  Howard Carpluk and Probationary Firefighter Michael

         19  Reilly, who tragically died after a floor collapse

         20  while fighting a fire in a 99 cent discount store on

         21  Walton Avenue in the Bronx.

         22                 Preliminary reports have indicated

         23  that it was not the fire that caused the floor

         24  collapse on that fatal day, but there were major

         25  structural faults in the renovation of that store's
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          2  first floor after a fire in 2000. Since the fire is

          3  currently under investigation, I cannot go into

          4  greater detail. However, I can say that I have been

          5  to many taxpayer fires in my career and have

          6  witnessed tower ladders on numerous occasions dump

          7  thousands of gallons of water into a taxpayer fire

          8  and I have never witnessed a floor collapse where

          9  fire did not play a role in compromising the floor's

         10  integrity.

         11                 On January 23, 2005, the day dubbed

         12  Black Sunday by the New York City Fire Department,

         13  six of my brother firefighters were forced to jump

         14  for their lives at a Bronx apartment building fire.

         15  Two of those firefighters died, Lt. Curtis Meyran

         16  and firefighter John Bellew, while the other four

         17  luckily survived that day, but still continue to

         18  suffer from injuries from that horrific fire. Again,

         19  illegal alterations to the apartments occupancy

         20  played a role in those firefighters getting trapped.

         21                 When are we as a City going to take

         22  an active stance against illegal and/or faulty

         23  renovations and hold those involved in those

         24  renovations accountable for their actions? I am

         25  encouraged that the City Council today is taking an
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          2  active role in addressing some of these issues. We

          3  are very grateful to Speaker Quinn and Councilman

          4  Martinez who offered their support and condolences

          5  to the firehouses affected in the Bronx fire

          6  recently and even visited the site of the last fatal

          7  fire to get a more intimate view of what may have

          8  happened.

          9                 We share not only the concern of our

         10  members safety, but we are also concerned for the

         11  safety of the citizens of New York. I personally

         12  have been to many buildings and have responded to

         13  many fires where I shook my head and said, thank God

         14  no one was killed in this fire trap. Yes, we follow

         15  up and we write our reports, but they all seem to go

         16  into a great abyss.

         17                 I am not here to point the finger at

         18  any agency or individual. I would like to outline

         19  some of the inherent problems the Fire Department

         20  field units have encountered with building

         21  renovations and rehabilitations. I should emphasize

         22  field units because I represent members who

         23  predominately work in the field and the local fire

         24  houses in the communities that they serve. One,

         25  there seems to be no accountability of the owner,
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          2  architect or engineer when submitting plans and

          3  recertifying or self- certifying the construction

          4  which takes place.

          5                 Two, there seems to be no

          6  accountability of the contractor to adhere to those

          7  plans and building fire codes. Three, there seems to

          8  be no accountability of the Department of Buildings

          9  to perform timely inspections of the premises while

         10  under construction to see if building codes are

         11  being adhered too. I was kind of shocked to hear

         12  that less than 20 percent, if I heard it correctly,

         13  less than 20 percent of the buildings are being

         14  audited which is kind of shocking when you hear that

         15  My question would have been, is there enough audits

         16  being done. When are those audits being done because

         17  a lot of times the audits might be done and the

         18  construction that is taking place might be already

         19  covered up.

         20                 Four, there seems to be a lack of

         21  effective communication between the Department of

         22  Buildings and the Fire Department field units when

         23  reports and violations are submitted. For example,

         24  we use a form called A8. An A8 is a referral form.

         25  If we see something that might be suspicious, may be
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          2  not up to code, we are not engineers, we are not

          3  architects. But we see something that could be a

          4  potential fire hazard or construction fault, what we

          5  will do is we file an A8 which is a referral form to

          6  the Department of Buildings. Many times those don't

          7  come back to us. Or many times, they come back a

          8  long time after it was filed. There needs to be

          9  greater communication, collaboration between the two

         10  which is my next point.

         11                 There seems to be a lack of knowledge

         12  by the Fire Department units on under the Department

         13  of Buildings process and function regarding building

         14  renovations and inspections. We need to have a

         15  better communication and collaboration. Believe it

         16  or not, I learned a few things today that I wasn't

         17  aware of in regards to how that process is and

         18  regards to the Department of Buildings. And the last

         19  is building code changes are being considered and

         20  sometimes implemented based on the bottom line,

         21  which is the dollar value, rather than on the

         22  integrity under fire conditions.

         23                 We've seen many times particularly in

         24  new construction where many years ago they would use

         25  wooden floor joists and they are substituting those
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          2  with aluminum C joists and floor construction which

          3  is a dangerous to us under fire conditions and the

          4  civilians. These are just a few that the City

          5  Council should review and investigate. Our field

          6  units do their best to take an initiative in

          7  visiting new construction and also buildings under

          8  renovation, but it is difficult. These visits are

          9  not mandated by our daily fire inspections and due

         10  to our recent increased workload, increase in

         11  responses, and the reduction of fire units (six fire

         12  houses being closed in 2004 for example), it is

         13  making it even more difficult for us to be vigilant

         14  visiting all the buildings under construction.

         15                 We understand that the Department of

         16  Buildings is understaffed and they are probably

         17  lacking the resources needed to accomplish this

         18  monumental task, which is shared by many agencies.

         19  That is why we feel it is imperative that joint

         20  collaboration take place between the two agencies to

         21  help address some of the faulty renovations and

         22  alterations that are taking place. I, too, would

         23  like to say that self- certification should be

         24  something that should be looked at very closely and

         25  maybe should be eliminated and going back to
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          2  everything being certified properly.

          3                 In closing, I would like to say that

          4  we are tired of going to firefighter funerals and we

          5  certainly don't want to see civilians injured or

          6  killed as a result of faulty or illegal

          7  construction. Again, I applaud the City Council and

          8  your committee, Councilman Dilan, on your initiative

          9  in this endeavor. We look forward to working with

         10  you in the future to address these building issues.

         11  As always, you have the full cooperation of the

         12  UFOA. Thank you for the opportunity to testify

         13  today.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you. I just

         15  want to state that I'm sure that I speak for the

         16  rest of the Committee that we are also sorry for the

         17  firefighter that lost his life in the Bronx. I

         18  wanted to assure the public that this hearing is

         19  maybe not in reaction to that. This has something

         20  that has been a long problem amongst my colleagues

         21  and in their neighborhoods long before that. But I

         22  think the fact that this happened in the Bronx only

         23  further proves the importance of these issues that

         24  we are exploring today and I think we have an

         25  opportunity to protect many more firefighters in the
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          2  future. I'm sure this Committee is ready to do so.

          3                 I have one brief question and I know

          4  that one of my colleagues has a brief question and

          5  at this point, I am going to keep the questions

          6  brief. But I just want to ask you, to your

          7  knowledge, can professional certify that corrections

          8  have been made or violations cured with respect to

          9  fire code matters?

         10                 MR. BOLES: Please repeat that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Can professionals

         12  certify to your knowledge that if corrections or

         13  violations have been cured with respect to fire code

         14  matters?

         15                 MR. BOLES: I'm not really sure.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Not really sure?

         17  Okay.

         18                 MR. BOLES: Not sure.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thanks. Council

         20  Member Vacca and then Oddo.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chair. I thank you very much. You brought up many

         23  important issues. I will be quick. To the best of

         24  your knowledge, I'm going to ask you a question

         25  which I think I have the answer for, but to the best
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          2  of your knowledge, before a certificate of occupancy

          3  is issued, is there a fire department inspection?

          4                 MR. BOLES: The field units do not do

          5  the inspection. Now is the inspection being done by

          6  the Fire Department because there is a separate fire

          7  investigations that come under the umbrella of the

          8  Fire Department, I'm not sure. But in regards to a

          9  fire unit, the fire units, I'm just going to take

         10  from me personally when I was a Lieutenant and as a

         11  firefighter. As a Lieutenant in the South Bronx,

         12  where we saw a lot of construction going up, we

         13  would take the initiative, the self- initiative to

         14  go out and look at new construction or look at

         15  what's being done. And ask the contractor for

         16  samples of some of the materials that are being used

         17  and compare it to some of the construction materials

         18  that has been used in the past. We take the self-

         19  initiative to do the inspections on our own. Are

         20  those being done by the Fire Department before

         21  certificate of occupancy is issued, I'm not sure.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: This is an

         23  issue, of course, I think we have to look at much

         24  further. When you mentioned joists and you mentioned

         25  whether it is a 2 x 4 or 2 x 3, we need to know what
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          2  the Fire Department looks for and I say, we, as a

          3  Council, as advocates. We need to know because that

          4  it is a match list for us when we deal with the

          5  Buildings Department. That would be helpful to us.

          6  When you go visit a site, the Fire Department goes,

          7  you make a referral on a red piece of paper, you

          8  make a referral to the Buildings Department. You saw

          9  something you didn't like. You make a referral to

         10  the Buildings Department. But that referral is not

         11  on the BIS system. It is not transparent. We never

         12  know that you made the referral.

         13                 We often will call fire to complain.

         14  You make the referral. How long does Buildings get

         15  to go there? When do they go there? What do they do

         16  with it? We don't know. We need to have

         17  accountability there. Also, for the Committee to

         18  know and I know my Chair, Mr. Martinez was here

         19  before and I'm going to speak to him. In the mid-

         20  1990's, there was a report from the Administration

         21  about the role of the Fire Department vs. The

         22  Buildings Department, revising roles, given fire

         23  more teeth in that process. I don't know what ever

         24  happened with that report. I know there was a report

         25  and it may be something that we want to revisit.
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          2  Namely the role of fire versus buildings. How do we

          3  interrelate and the fact that we have to interact.

          4  We have to have an interaction. These are safety

          5  issues.

          6                 I'm thinking of new construction. But

          7  I also can think of pending violations that are not

          8  resolved that go through an ECB court system that

          9  take forever and while that ECB court system takes

         10  forever, there is an issue here that is of moderate

         11  or severe priority and danger. I look forward to

         12  your union in having input into that dialogue and

         13  I'm raising some points that I know are more

         14  relative to the Fire Department, but they are very

         15  important points to raise when we talk about

         16  Buildings vs Fire.

         17                 MR. BOLES: Absolutely. The joint

         18  effort of Fire Department assuming some roles and

         19  the Buildings Departments vice versa has been

         20  discussed. But just to let you know, when a field

         21  unit gets a complaint, that complaint is being

         22  investigated right away. If we get something from

         23  the Building Department, we go out at that time and

         24  we expeditiously review it. I don't know what's

         25  happening on the other end. Again, I'm not here to
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          2  point fingers at anybody.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: No, no. I

          4  appreciate that. I'm not here to point either. I'm

          5  just here to make sure that when one agency does

          6  something, the other agency realizes and especially

          7  when your agency does something, it is very, very

          8  important to public safety. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you. Are

         10  there anymore questions? Council Member Oddo.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Within days of

         12  that tragedy, Chairman Martinez of the Fire and

         13  Criminal Justice Committee, called me up and I had

         14  conversations with the Building's Chairman, Chairman

         15  Dilan, I'm sure he had conversations with Chairman

         16  Martinez about the incident. I can't speak with

         17  certainty, but knowing this Speaker and knowing this

         18  Chairman and knowing Chairman Martinez, you can rest

         19  assured at the appropriate time, there will be a

         20  Council hearing on that incident itself and we will

         21  look at that in great detail. Because these things

         22  have a way of not only repeating themselves, but

         23  repeating themselves in a larger capacity.

         24                 I remember in March of 2001, having a

         25  hearing at which Commissioner Vonescent (phonetic)
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          2  testified and it was in wake of the May day

          3  incident, I think also in the Bronx, where the

          4  radios didn't work (it was Queens), and we saw

          5  months later that issue come and bite us in the ass

          6  again, but in a much bigger scale. Knowing Speaker

          7  Quinn, knowing Chairman Martinez and Chairman Dilan,

          8  you can rest assured, this Council will look at that

          9  day and take what we can get from it and hopefully

         10  change some things.

         11                 MR. BOLES: If I may comment? I

         12  personally escorted Councilman Martinez on two

         13  occasions to both fire houses and to the site as

         14  well as Speaker Quinn. They got a very, very

         15  personal intimate view of what happened that

         16  particular day and we certainly appreciate the

         17  outpouring of support that we get from the City

         18  Council and what we have always gotten from the City

         19  Council.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you. I'm

         21  going to go through a list of people who have signed

         22  up to speak. I know some people didn't have the

         23  opportunity to stay. I'll call up in panels of four

         24  and if you are here, certainly please come up. I

         25  have Ryan Galvin from the Office of Manhattan
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          2  Borough President; Monty Mitchell from the AIA New

          3  York Code Committee. I think you signed up twice. I

          4  have a Hal Dorfman, New York Society of Architects;

          5  and Kim Lee Vauss from Arc Consultants, Inc.

          6                 I just want to personally thank you

          7  for your patience at this late hour. I know you have

          8  all been here since approximately 1:00 and we

          9  appreciate you sticking around and expressing your

         10  opinions on these legislative matters before you

         11  today. Generally, gentlemen the rule that I have

         12  always stuck to since I have been Chair of this

         13  Committee is ladies first. If you don't mind, I

         14  guess the ladies can choose amongst themselves of

         15  who would like to go first.

         16                 MS. GALVIN: Good afternoon. My name

         17  is Ryan Galvin and I give these remarks on behalf of

         18  Borough President Scott Stringer. To begin, I want

         19  to thank Chairman Dilan for holding a hearing on the

         20  proposed legislation seeking to modify the

         21  Department of Buildings self- certification process.

         22  Manhattan is experiencing a development boom the

         23  likes of which has not been seen in the City for

         24  several decades. Construction is underway in some

         25  form on almost every block of the borough. However,
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          2  while this growth is positive and often beneficial

          3  to our communities in numerous ways, this boom has

          4  stretched the New York City Department of Buildings

          5  to the limit, leaving staff unable to enforce the

          6  building code and the zoning resolution.

          7                 In 2003, I released the report, Total

          8  Collapse, How New York City Department of Buildings,

          9  failed policies contribute to crumbling buildings,

         10  detailing DOB's lack of enforcement for correction

         11  of nearly 13,000 of the most egregious building code

         12  infractions issued since 2001; a failure that left

         13  $14 million in fines uncollected. Unfortunately,

         14  based on what I have observed over the past nine

         15  months as Borough President, these conditions have

         16  not improved.

         17                 DOB is almost entirely built around

         18  the self- certification model. While effective in

         19  many cases, the system requires diligent and pro-

         20  active inspection and enforcement; neither of which

         21  exist at DOB. The limited number of inspectors

         22  assigned to Manhattan cannot begin to do all the

         23  necessary work, especially since Manhattan sees

         24  double the number of permits issued annually in the

         25  other boroughs.
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          2                 A pilot program to inspect plans for

          3  zoning compliance prior to issuing a work permit has

          4  begun in all boroughs other than Manhattan. I

          5  commend this improvement, but DOB must hire more

          6  plan examiners to handle the corresponding increase

          7  in examination duties. Furthermore, considering that

          8  the Mayor's Management Report for DOB shows that

          9  Manhattan has nearly twice as many permits issued or

         10  renewed for 2005 than any other borough, it is

         11  curious that Manhattan was not included in this new

         12  policy. This program must be implemented across the

         13  board. Manhattan is in desperate need for stronger

         14  DOB enforcement of the zoning resolution.

         15                 We are all aware that DOB has not

         16  received funding increases commensurate with the

         17  rate of development in our City. To truly enhance

         18  DOB's effectiveness, additional funding for new

         19  staff and for accessing modern technology is needed.

         20  The legislation considered today focuses on

         21  curtailing the abuses of the self- certification

         22  system; thereby ameliorating a number of the

         23  problems at DOB. Introduction 29 completely does

         24  away with the self- certification model at DOB.

         25  While I support the concept of DOB inspectors
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          2  visiting all sites, I believe that without a large

          3  addition of staff and financial resources to the

          4  agency fully ending self- certification would create

          5  a backlog on construction.

          6                 Introductions 299, 308, and 309

          7  attempt to deal with the abuses of self-

          8  certification by seeking out professionals who have

          9  a history of misusing the system and creating

         10  disincentives to this behavior. Sanctions against

         11  professional engineers and registered architects

         12  that falsely self- certify building permit

         13  applications or plans, as prescribed in Introduction

         14  299, would help to strengthen and sustain the self-

         15  certification program. Additionally, Introduction

         16  308 requires DOB to carefully examine plans

         17  submitted by professionals who have been put on

         18  probation by the State Education Department and is a

         19  worthy measure for cracking down on repeat

         20  offenders.

         21                 I strongly support the creation of a

         22  database of professional engineers and architects

         23  who self- certify false or noncompliant building

         24  permit applications or plans as put forth in

         25  Introduction 309. Using technology to track repeat
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          2  offenders is the key to ending improper

          3  certification. I believe this database should also

          4  include owners and developers who have failed self-

          5  certification audits. An idea use of such a tracking

          6  system would be to flag landlords with unpaid fines

          7  and outstanding violations in order to deny them

          8  future permits until outstanding issues are

          9  resolved.

         10                 I also support denying self-

         11  certification privileges for a certain length of

         12  time for operators who are identified for falsely

         13  self- certifying on numerous occasions. This

         14  introduction should be expanded to require that DOB,

         15  through its website, have a publicly accessible

         16  electronic database that shows the plans of all

         17  approved projects and for all permits that have been

         18  issued. With better access to plans, residents can

         19  more easily hold building owners and contractors

         20  accountable to the law.

         21                 In conclusion, as New York City

         22  continues to grow and develop, so must the

         23  Department of Buildings. Introduction 299, 308, and

         24  309 give DOB some of the necessary tools to properly

         25  deal with the construction boom. I look forward to
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          2  working with you in the future to better empower DOB

          3  and to make the agency more effective. Thank you for

          4  the opportunity to comment.

          5                 MS. VAUSS: Good afternoon. My name is

          6  Kim Vauss and I'm a registered architect in the

          7  State of New York and I guess I came to speak

          8  against a lot of the proposals and the

          9  introductions. Mainly, I'm going to read from what I

         10  wrote. That's easier.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: By any chance,

         12  would you have a copy?

         13                 MS. VAUSS: Yes, I have copies.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: You could give it

         15  to the Sergeant- at- Arms and he will distribute it

         16  to us and you can proceed.

         17                 MS. VAUSS: My practice consists

         18  mainly of building and zoning consultation and

         19  filing new buildings and major alterations with the

         20  Department of Buildings for myself and others. About

         21  20 percent of the new building filings have been

         22  professionally certified. None of these filing were

         23  ever revoked, but most were audited. I have usually

         24  found the auditing process to mainly be meeting with

         25  the examiners and clarifying how the original filing
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          2  already complied with the applicable codes and

          3  zoning. On occasion, there have been zoning issues

          4  which needed clarification or which due to changes

          5  in interpretations on DOB's part, lead to changes in

          6  the proposed plans.

          7                 Under the above noted proposed

          8  legislation, I and other architects or engineers

          9  would be subject to sanctions and/or probation for

         10  self- certifying noncompliant building permits

         11  and/or plans, for something which probably would not

         12  rise to the level of serious errors or omissions in

         13  any court and definitely would not be considered

         14  within the professional standard of care required

         15  under the  New York State Law. It would be in the

         16  professional standard of care.

         17                 I feel false and fraudulent building

         18  permit applications and/or plans are already

         19  punishable under current State and City laws and

         20  noncompliant building permit application and plans

         21  is too subjective a term to be written into

         22  legislation which subjects licensed professionals to

         23  legal sanctions and/or probation, especially when

         24  the New York City zoning resolution and building

         25  code are themselves subjective and open to
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          2  interpretation, i.e., Department of Buildings

          3  Technical Policy and Procedure Notices, Operation

          4  Policy and Procedure Notices, Department memos,

          5  guidelines, et cetera.

          6                 The Professional Certification

          7  Program has had its abuses, but the majority of

          8  those abuses have been committed by a few infamous

          9  individuals and the whole profession should not be

         10  punished by the acts of a few. That's what is in my

         11  written statement. To go on, I was actually an

         12  examiner at the Department of Buildings when they

         13  first started professional certification. When they

         14  first introduced it, it started out as a program and

         15  we were all worried about people would take

         16  advantage and we started auditing the projects and

         17  you could see there were some people who made

         18  legitimate mistakes. They just didn't know what they

         19  were doing. They did something in error. It wasn't

         20  fraud. It was just a mistake.

         21                 There were other people who were just

         22  going through doing the same thing all over town and

         23  they had to know it was wrong. I think this is still

         24  what has happened to this day that there is some

         25  people and I think the Department knows who those
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          2  people are and they should get a list of those

          3  people and punish those people who are committing

          4  fraud in just out there doing what they know is

          5  wrong. I feel that for the best of intentions, that

          6  this legislation will be used to punish people who

          7  just make a mistake. Just simply make a mistake. And

          8  people have been going through the auditing process

          9  and the disciplinary process at the Department of

         10  Buildings, where you say okay, you think the

         11  building is not too tall and they say the building

         12  is too tall. You have a disagreement and you

         13  compromise in the middle somewhere.

         14                 But by agreeing to go with the

         15  interpretation of the Department of Buildings,

         16  though it might not be much different than what

         17  your's was. We're not talking about adding ten

         18  stories. We're talking about the difference between

         19  counting the para pit and the height. Not counting

         20  the para pit, counting the bulk and not counting the

         21  bulk, that kind of thing (small items that they

         22  bring up in audit). Sometimes these things by

         23  admitting to it, by agreeing to the Department of

         24  Buildings interpretation, you're thought to have

         25  admitted that you are wrong; that you committed a
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          2  crime; that somehow you have done something wrong.

          3  Where we wrong in a profession where there is a lot

          4  room for compromise; a lot of room for

          5  interpretation, especially in the building code and

          6  the zoning resolution in that just as in law, there

          7  are a lot of precedents.

          8                 Unfortunately, at the Department of

          9  Buildings, most of those precedents aren't written

         10  down. And those that are written down have been open

         11  to interpretation again. And sometimes you don't

         12  have the latest thing that is written down. Last

         13  week, I was at an audit for a job where we had a

         14  mezzanine on the top story and our building was

         15  under the height, but they counted the mezzanine as

         16  a story suddenly. I have worked in this industry for

         17  20 years at least and I've been an examiner. And one

         18  place the building code says a mezzanine is not a

         19  story. The zoning resolution defines almost anything

         20  as a story. It could define a drop ceiling, the

         21  space between the drop ceiling and the roof as a

         22  story if it wanted too.

         23                 We ended up with a job where we were

         24  revoked. We weren't revoked, it was for another

         25  applicant, not for myself. But we weren't revoked,
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          2  we were put on audit for zoning for something that

          3  is in the building code as being one way. It is the

          4  zoning resolution for being another way. And here we

          5  are complying with what we thought was the way they

          6  had interpreted it for years, only to find out that

          7  there is an e- mail going around from the

          8  Commissioner saying that they couldn't approve it

          9  this way anymore. Something that wasn't published.

         10  Something that nobody knew about in the public. But

         11  still it looks like the applicant is out there

         12  committing fraud in trying to build the building too

         13  tall.

         14                 It's one of these things that falls

         15  into interpretation that happens constantly where

         16  you had an interpretation going in. You filed the

         17  job that way and on this particular job, I had gone

         18  in for the applicant and I filed like four

         19  reconsiderations which they call pre- considerations

         20  where I go in to the borough superintendent and

         21  discuss what I think would be tricky issues on the

         22  zoning before we professionally certify. This never

         23  came up. Never came up. And here it comes up on an

         24  audit after the building is already started.

         25                 You are under pressure on the audit
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          2  that you are really under pressure to agree to what

          3  the Department of Buildings wants you to do because

          4  they have your permit and they are revoking your

          5  permit. You have workers on the job. You have an

          6  open site. You are pouring foundations and you know

          7  you are here under the gun and somehow you are

          8  suddenly guilty. You are guilty with a ridiculous

          9  time constraint. The owner's money is out there. The

         10  site is open. It's not good for the public. It's not

         11  good for you. It's not good for the Department of

         12  Buildings. A lot of times you agree to what they

         13  want if it isn't that much. Not that you agree that

         14  they are right, but you agree to what they want

         15  because you are wasting so much money on the site

         16  not agreeing to it. If you can compromise, you

         17  compromise.

         18                 This is the way things are done at

         19  Buildings constantly where you have to discuss the

         20  interpretation of things. When you have the --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: If you could

         22  please summarize?

         23                 MS. VAUSS: I'm sorry. I'm saying that

         24  in the practice of architecture, there are a lot of

         25  things open to interpretation and I don't think
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          2  people should be penalized for non- complying

          3  conditions when non- complying conditions change

          4  from today to tomorrow and they change from the

          5  standard that the Department of Buildings has said.

          6  Yes, I agree that yes, there are people who are

          7  abusing the system and those people should be

          8  punished. But I guess I really disagree with the

          9  idea of non- compliant conditions as opposed to

         10  fraud. I can understand what fraud is. I can

         11  understand misrepresentation. I can understand

         12  people just lying on their applications and plans.

         13  But mistakes that are due to interpretations that

         14  have changed during the period when you even had the

         15  building up and when you applied, should not be the

         16  basis for probation and penalties for licensed

         17  applicants. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you.

         19                 MR. MITCHELL: Hi, I am Monty

         20  Mitchell, an architect, Chair of the New York AIA

         21  Code Committee of the Manhattan Chapter of the AIA.

         22  Professional certification has been an accepted

         23  procedure in the Directive 14 approval of minor

         24  alterations. Limited to no change in zoning use or

         25  egress and the controlled inspections of concealed
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          2  work and final inspection of construction.

          3  Professionals certification was expanded to new

          4  buildings and alterations, major alterations, as a

          5  result of the expansion of volume of applications

          6  and the increase time to review them.

          7                 The problems in the professional

          8  certification program have resulted from problems in

          9  zoning enforcement and interpretations. The majority

         10  of noncompliant cases are honest mistakes and are

         11  readily addressed by the architect concerned in

         12  Building Department staff. Abuse of the system is

         13  defined as professional misconduct which should be

         14  addressable by New York State Education Department

         15  of Professional Discipline. We support the

         16  Department of Buildings linking them the data bases

         17  and in zoning and hiring of staff with the

         18  professional experience to enforce the New York

         19  City's building code and zoning resolution.

         20                 Regarding the bills before City

         21  Council, we support the Department of Buildings

         22  enforcement of standards in the Professional

         23  Certification Programs. Mistakes should be resolved

         24  within the time frame of a notice to revoke an

         25  approved permit. Misconduct after review should be
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          2  referred to New York State Department of Licensure

          3  for Disciplinary Action. The New York Chapter of the

          4  AIA is willing to assist the Department of Buildings

          5  in professional standards for peer review.

          6                 The Building Code Committee feels

          7  that professional certification reflects the best

          8  judgment of the professional that the documents

          9  submitted comply with the building code and the

         10  zoning resolution. The use of the audit process

         11  should not be an absolute judgment. We encourage the

         12  use of peer review to assist the Department of

         13  Buildings and the Board of Regents to set standards.

         14                 The Department of Buildings

         15  modifications to Rule 21 need to consider the

         16  overlapping jurisdictions of housing, city planning

         17  and fire safety to establish competency in standards

         18  of misconduct. The right to use professional

         19  certification is, however, privilege granted by the

         20  New York City Department of Buildings which should

         21  have the ability consistent with due process to

         22  suspend or revoke these privileges. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you. Before

         24  you begin, I see there was some testimony by the AIA

         25  Chapter that was to be read into the record. But I
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          2  believe you summarized that. Is that correct?

          3                 MR. MITCHELL: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Then we don't need

          5  to do this. Okay. Next.

          6                 MR. DORFMAN: My name is Hal Dorfman

          7  and I'm a licensed New York State architect. I'm

          8  also past president of the New York Society of

          9  Architects and I've served on its legislative

         10  committee. I and Kim Vauss are both still members

         11  and Kim sits on the Board of Directors. This

         12  gentlemen has said many things that I don't know if

         13  you really absorbed. You asked the question which I

         14  thought was very excellent, Martin Dilan, was about

         15  the Directive 14. But you didn't put the date to

         16  Directive 14. Directive 14 was from 1975 and Mr.

         17  McMahon said that the City Charter was from 1898 and

         18  since 1998 or 1995, professional certification

         19  didn't exist.

         20                 But certifications by architects have

         21  existed since architects were licensed. We give them

         22  to banks. We give them to insurance companies. We

         23  give them to the Department of Buildings. Our

         24  licenses, which I take as sacred. It is a trust.

         25  When you walk down the building as citizens as we
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          2  all are here, we trust the architects and engineers

          3  to this very room we sit in that it will remain

          4  static and stable in winds, in rain, in hurricanes

          5  and earthquakes.

          6                 What we have before us here is even

          7  before Directive 14 was Directive 2 of 1973. There

          8  is a little history here. Now controlled inspections

          9  were mentioned here. There are many things that

         10  architects and engineers have been given the

         11  responsibility of either through lack of funding or

         12  for whatever reason because we are the professionals

         13  who are responsible for monitoring the construction

         14  of a building. Really the Building Department gives

         15  us an approval for our plans and issues a permit

         16  because the contract that has his proper insurances.

         17  But it is the architects that ultimately if

         18  something goes wrong or if something goes right, are

         19  held responsible. I include architects and engineers

         20  as being synonymous.

         21                 The professional certification may be

         22  a privilege, but it is a law. It is part of now our

         23  building code which is right now up for a major

         24  revisions which may not be the greatest thing.

         25  Because our building code is probably the best
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          2  building code as it sits right now in the country.

          3  And it only proves that when somebody comes up to

          4  bat, you've got 300 individuals in this City that is

          5  sitting down to review our building code. Now the

          6  New York Society of Architects used to year after

          7  year issue the building code and have men and women

          8  that sat on a committee that it took all of our

          9  local laws, put them into a published volume and

         10  reissued the code. There was citizens involved and

         11  as architects, we are citizens.

         12                 Back in 1973, Directive 2 of 1973

         13  just architects at that point had to submit plans

         14  for occupancy, fire protection and zoning. That's

         15  what the Building Department started examining when

         16  they gave a full review. They didn't review

         17  structure. When you say all plans, I read these

         18  things. They show a lack of knowledge of what the

         19  Buildings Department does. But they don't review

         20  mechanical drawings anymore. They don't review

         21  electrical drawings. They don't review structural.

         22  Look above your head. That's structural. They don't

         23  review it. They don't even look at those plans.

         24  Whether they stamped them approved or not, they

         25  don't look at them.
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          2                 It would take double if not triple

          3  the amount the Building Department employees to

          4  review and fully review what they did before 1973.

          5  You should hold very carefully before you try to

          6  revoke or suggest to revoke this professional

          7  certification law which was only enacted by

          8  Commissioner Mealy (phonetic) with due

          9  consideration. I sat with him and I was actually the

         10  first applicant in this City that filed at 2 South

         11  End Avenue. You can look it up on the BIS system. I

         12  was the first applicant that filed and I actually

         13  had to train Ms. Weeks. I actually had to train her

         14  how to enter the certification checklist in. We have

         15  to certify item by item what is required.

         16                 Now everybody was asking for data of

         17  the Building Department of the Deputy Commissioner.

         18  But I did hear two very significant sets of numbers

         19  and if the Building Department was my son, I'm going

         20  to relate to these numbers now. They said there is

         21  75,000 permits. There may be less applications

         22  because the job can have multiple permits. But I

         23  think in terms of people who are being disciplined,

         24  less than 200 possible disciplinary actions out of

         25  75,000 permits. That's less than one percent. Now
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          2  the if the Building Department was my son, I think

          3  at 99 percent average, he would get into Harvard.

          4                 I think the Building Department is

          5  doing a pretty good job overall. And what I don't

          6  see and this I think is the key, you are going to

          7  create more legislation that you are going to leave

          8  the next people of this Council with and us as

          9  citizens and our children with, is that we have

         10  present laws that if they were enforced and

         11  compliance was brought, if you gave the Building

         12  Department more inspectors in the field because I'm

         13  hearing from my contractors that plumbing inspectors

         14  are starting to show up when plumbers have the right

         15  to self- certify. That makes them a little nervous.

         16  They are more in compliant.

         17                 Controlled inspections with this

         18  gentleman mentioned, the Building Department doesn't

         19  go out and inspect for things that the Fire

         20  Department was talking about, whether a ceiling was

         21  properly fire rated, it's not whether you use an

         22  engineered glue, which is now a controlled item, it

         23  just went on a few years ago, or use a C-joists or a

         24  wood joists, it was whether the assembly was put

         25  together properly. That's called fire stopping. Now

                                                            160

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  an architect or an engineer has to certify it. If

          3  something is wrong, and that fire where people were

          4  killed in the Bronx recently, if there is something

          5  wrong, you have to go back and look who certified

          6  that and bring him to the table. That's the

          7  responsibility. It is a sacred trust when I put my

          8  seal on those drawings or I say I'm going to certify

          9  something. I don't professionally certify something

         10  I don't know.

         11                 What I'm saying to you is a very

         12  small amount of people that I heard at this table

         13  from the Buildings Department Deputy Commissioner,

         14  who have actually been sanctioned out of those

         15  75,000 permits that were issued. This doesn't sound

         16  to me like it is a great abuse. It sounds to me that

         17  the 311 system is working. People are calling when

         18  they think they see something wrong. It would be

         19  like saying that we want to revoke on street parking

         20  because people are legally parked. There are always

         21  going to be rogue citizens. We have prisons full of

         22  them. But that doesn't mean that you want to revoke

         23  a program that in general and in the vast majority

         24  works unless you are prepared to one, take the

         25  Building Departments budget out of the general
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          2  counsel. Because I sit and I organize through the

          3  society the industry advisor meeting with the last

          4  probably five or six Manhattan building

          5  commissioners and we meet every six weeks to talk

          6  about policy. The only thing that keeps coming out,

          7  Jerry Gilman (phonetic)  keeps repeating it. He is

          8  an architect in the City for probably close to 40

          9  years, is the Building Department needs more staff.

         10                 The only way it can do its job is

         11  more staff. I'd like to see structural drawings

         12  reviewed. I'd like to see what this gentlemen was

         13  talking about, sewer department drawings. Sewer

         14  department drawings are self- certified for the most

         15  part. Most things, Directive 14 does not take care

         16  of occupancy; does not take care of egress; does not

         17  take care of room counts; does not even examine

         18  zoning. But those all type 2 jobs are the vast

         19  majority of the jobs. Probably 30,000 of those

         20  applications have to do with --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: If you could sum

         22  up.

         23                 MR. DORFMAN: -- (I'll sum up),

         24  changes to stores, combination of apartments, minor

         25  renovations to buildings, small addition to houses.
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          2  Those are the vast majority of applications and most

          3  applicants who file them have done them at least

          4  once or twice before and in general know the laws.

          5                 What I want to leave with you is we

          6  have a body of laws. Professional certification is a

          7  law. Even this Rule 21 which the gentlemen over

          8  here, the Councilman spoke about why does it take

          9  when Patricia Lancaster sat here since January to

         10  now, because the AIA, the Architects Counsel and New

         11  York Society of Architects has been working with the

         12  Building Department. They want to make it so onerous

         13  to the professionals, the vast majority of

         14  professionals who comply with that law, they want to

         15  chase those people out from self- certifying. So be

         16  prepared as a Council and as a person, your main

         17  function is to allocate the City's tax dollars. Be

         18  prepared to allocate much more tax dollars for the

         19  Building Department because it is going to need it

         20  in terms of staff to do its mandated job under the

         21  present law. Keep that in mind before you change the

         22  laws.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you.

         24                 MR. DORFMAN: Thank you for hearing me

         25  out. I do appreciate it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Say again?

          3                 MR. DORFMAN: Thank you for hearing me

          4  out and I appreciate it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: You're very

          6  welcome. Next. Wait. I thought he was going to

          7  testify. Before we release you, I thought one more

          8  gentlemen was going to testify. He did? Oh, okay.

          9  I'm sorry. I've been here a long time also. Before,

         10  I release the panel, I'd just like to ask the panel

         11  to have a seat. I want to just respond briefly

         12  before I allow some of my colleagues. Certainly, it

         13  is not my intent and I understand what you've seen

         14  in writing today in terms of the legislative

         15  proposals today. It is certainly not my intent to go

         16  after hard working professionals who do their job on

         17  a daily basis and I'm certain that there are tons of

         18  architects that do the right thing.

         19                 It definitely is my intent to go

         20  after the few and I'll agree that there may be a few

         21  individuals that are negligent and do the wrong

         22  thing. And I certainly am willing to go after them

         23  and if I need to legislate to go after them, I will.

         24  I understand there are certain City laws that are in

         25  place that are not enforced. I think the reason for
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          2  this hearing is for exactly that reason. Those laws

          3  aren't enforced. I think this Committee has asked

          4  for those laws to be enforced and the Department of

          5  Buildings certainly needs to do more to enforce that

          6  and maybe everybody wouldn't have the war stories in

          7  their neighborhood that they have.

          8                 I want to say to those that testified

          9  in opposition, we do want to take your concerns into

         10  account before we move forward with the legislative

         11  package. I think we all want to be mindful of the

         12  package that goes forward that doesn't create more

         13  damage than what's in place at this point. However,

         14  I think the members of my Committee have made it

         15  clear to me that they do want something done about

         16  this issue. I think we all in conjunction with you

         17  look forward to acting responsibly. With that said,

         18  Council Member Oddo.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Sir, can I have

         20  your business card before you leave. That's the

         21  first thing. The second thing is, let me just say

         22  that I appreciate the other side, what you're saying

         23  and I know this hearing was dominated by one point

         24  of view and I think all of us are aware that there

         25  is another point of view out there. I just want to
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          2  clarify your point about 73,000 permits, but only

          3  200 people punished, if you way. You look at those

          4  numbers and extrapolate from that that the

          5  overwhelming majority of practitioners are doing the

          6  right thing. I don't disagree with that.

          7                 But I look at those numbers and say

          8  human nature tells me just like I'm everybody's

          9  idiot because I'm an attorney and a politician. Just

         10  like in my professions, there are bad politicians,

         11  there are bad attorneys. Human nature in probability

         12  and statistics tell me that that 200 number is way

         13  too low. I think there are more than 200 people out

         14  there who have done the wrong thing. My question to

         15  you is are you satisfied with the communication you

         16  have with DOB in total and more specifically, are

         17  you satisfied that your industry is being heard in

         18  terms of your recommendations to deal with the bad

         19  guys so that an outside entity like the City Council

         20  doesn't come in and impose overkill and hurt the

         21  industry even more?

         22                 MR. DORFMAN: Councilman Oddo, my name

         23  is Hal Dorfman. I'll give you my card afterwards.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: We need you to

         25  push --
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          2                 MR. DORFMAN: What I'd like to say is

          3  am I satisfied with the way things are at the

          4  Building Department with its communication? I act as

          5  the liaison through our professional society through

          6  every Commissioner. We have the new Commissioner

          7  Chris Sanchuchi (phonetic) now, it was Laura Sarrioa

          8  (phonetic) before and there was a fellow temporarily

          9  and then Ron Livenn (phonetic). I keep the

         10  communication of this industry advisory meeting

         11  going every time we have a new commissioner. We

         12  cannot as professionals of architects/engineers and

         13  expediters who sit around this table is probably

         14  over 20 people that meet every six weeks, we can

         15  only deal with policy issues.

         16                 The way things operate are the

         17  examiners responding quick enough to getting us

         18  subjections. Can we get appointments? Can we get

         19  permits fast enough? We cannot as individuals, as

         20  architects/engineers, building department officials,

         21  change law. We're in a democratic society and thank

         22  God we are. We make laws through a representative

         23  government. Do I think that there are more abusers

         24  than actually get caught? You want an opinion. In

         25  its opinion, I would have to say yes. But that's my
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          2  opinion. I don't know.

          3                 I do know that the Building

          4  Department has made great strides. I just sat with

          5  the Fire Department that was here before. The

          6  Building Department had its first joint task

          7  learning session with the Emergency Response

          8  Department, with Hoffman and the Battalion Chief

          9  Fred LaFemina. I actually sat there as a civilian

         10  representative, as a non- City employee and I wrote

         11  an article which is in our newsletter about it. And

         12  it was dealing with how does the Building

         13  Department, because they just established a body of

         14  forensic engineers to go out with department

         15  inspectors to investigate when things go wrong,

         16  basically collapse situations which mostly happen in

         17  trenches and it happened at 2:45 in the afternoon at

         18  the shift changes I was told.

         19                 The Building Department has made

         20  great strides. The BIS website, the Building

         21  Department's website offers the Council, people,

         22  amazing amounts of information. You can type in an

         23  architects name and you can see every application

         24  that he has filed that's been in the BIS system

         25  since 1990. You type in my name, a few hundred
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          2  applications. You can see if you just want to click

          3  on that person's name, you can see what the status

          4  of those applications are. Whether they were

          5  revoked, whether they are in audit and you can just

          6  open it up. It's transparent. The information is

          7  great. I mean the Mayor's incentive through Patricia

          8  Lancaster, the Commissioner, is terrific.

          9                 I mean we can see more and more

         10  information. I mean the homeowner, when he wants to

         11  do a deck, he can get that information right on

         12  line. It's terrific. So, the audit department may

         13  need to be strengthened a little more. But what I'm

         14  saying is you have the law that exists right now and

         15  gives the Building Department through its technical

         16  compliance unit the ability to sanction architects.

         17  It's there. It's on the books. It's just not being

         18  enforced. If it was being enforced through citizen

         19  participation identifying what went on in Brooklyn

         20  with these buildings that were going up that were 15

         21  or 20 feet too high.

         22                 I have to add something that I didn't

         23  add in my testimony. There was a building that was

         24  constructed some years ago on 96th Street and Park

         25  Avenue that was 12 stories too big. Al Elfrin
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          2  (phonetic), he retired right after that. He was a

          3  member of our society. The court ruled that he

          4  should have went back to the original stenographer

          5  notes for the zoning change. I think that was a

          6  little onerous. Right now, you can go on

          7  oasisnyc.org and you can get any lots zoning

          8  information. The Buildings Department is working

          9  that what they call PLUTO, whether we see it or not,

         10  but I mean it's out there now. The public sector has

         11  it. You can go to propertyshot.org or

         12  propertyshot.com and get the same thing.

         13                 The websites are out there. We use

         14  them. You can go onto, what do you call it, you can

         15  just go onto your own website nyc.gov and click on

         16  city planning and open any zoning map, the most up-

         17  to- date zoning map. Yet you guys put a disclaimer

         18  on it that I can't relay on it. It's the most up-

         19  to- date. I'm waiting four months for a zoning map.

         20  I can't relay on what's coming out on line that was

         21  published weeks ago. You talk about communication.

         22  This is right now where we are in this age of

         23  communication. The Buildings Department is moving to

         24  scanning documents now. Things are really happening

         25  with the Building Department. It is a good agency.
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          2  It is a responsive agency.

          3                 I can call up and I can file -- if I

          4  want to professionally certify something now, I can

          5  fax in a document and request a pre- filing

          6  determination of something of base plane.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Can I just stop

          8  you there for a second?

          9                 MR. DORFMAN: I'm sorry.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: There is one

         11  point and I'll repeat what I said to Commissioner

         12  LiMandri. You just said it's a good agency. It's a

         13  responsive agency. But the reputation it has amongst

         14  elected officials and in the community is just the

         15  opposite of that. And I truly believe whether it is

         16  real or perceived, the genesis of that animosity

         17  towards this agency comes from this professional

         18  certification issue. Whether it is reality or not,

         19  that's the perception. And you have to address it.

         20  And I'm not saying addressing it means wiping out

         21  professional certification in total, but the status

         22  quo just isn't cutting it. That's what leads to

         23  frankly elected officials going, I don't want to say

         24  too far, but going to an extreme in the other

         25  direction.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: I think we really

          3  need to get onto the next panel. Everyone has been

          4  patient and I want to give everybody that wants to

          5  speak. Council Member Jackson, its going to hold the

          6  panel. But keep in mind Council Jackson that there

          7  are individuals that have been waiting here since

          8  1:00 --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I understand,

         10  sir.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: -- And you have

         12  been very patient and has not asked or spoke one

         13  time during this hearing, so I definitely will allow

         14  you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I think that

         16  your comment that the City Council should allocate

         17  more money, I think that you're wrong. The Mayor who

         18  has the bulk of all of the money that's allocated

         19  and collected through taxes and other ways, the

         20  Mayor, that's the Mayor agency and the Mayor needs

         21  to allocate the money in order to carry out the

         22  responsibilities. You're saying that in your opinion

         23  based on everything that you know that things are on

         24  the books and it just needs to be enforced. Well, I

         25  think that you are absolutely correct in a lot of
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          2  respects and I don't know if it true 100 percent,

          3  but maybe your groups and all the other groups

          4  should be communicating directly with the Mayor that

          5  he needs to fund the agency to carry out the

          6  particulars that need to be carried out so that

          7  Council Members and others that are hearing

          8  complaints, so that firefighters and others that are

          9  being killed as a result of things not being correct

         10  or because of alterations that may have been done

         11  illegally that may not have been filed that people

         12  are not losing their lives.

         13                 I respectfully request that you

         14  communicate directly with the Mayor and have all

         15  your colleagues that they allocate the monies that

         16  need to be done so that the Department of Buildings

         17  can carry out their responsibilities. When we in the

         18  budget negotiations and I sit on Finance, the

         19  Commissioner is not going to come in front of us and

         20  say that she doesn't have enough money to carry out

         21  the mandates of the law. If she did that, she would

         22  be fired. So, advocates like yourself and all the

         23  associations need to communicate that. Not only

         24  verbally when you get an opportunity to pigeon hole

         25  him, but also formerly in writing.
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          2                 If not, then it must be scripted

          3  where we must say and pass laws that say, this must

          4  be done to ensure, to ensure that firefighters lives

          5  are not being jeopardized and to ensure that the

          6  safety and security of the people that we represent

          7  is prime number one. No response is necessary, but I

          8  wanted to clarify for you. You said us that we

          9  should allocate. The Mayor should allocate. It's an

         10  executive branch of the government.

         11                 MR. DORFMAN: It may have been my

         12  mistake. I don't know exactly how the finance, the

         13  budget gets approved by the City. What entities

         14  actually, whether it's the Mayor that submits it to

         15  you or you submit it to the Mayor. I'm sorry about

         16  that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I'm saying

         18  that someone in the organization you should know

         19  that the Mayor comes out with a preliminary budget

         20  and then we hold preliminary budget hearings.

         21  Hopefully your group will come and testify at that

         22  preliminary budget hearing to say that there is not

         23  enough money allocated to the Department of

         24  Buildings to carry out their responsibilities and

         25  we're requesting that the Mayor and you, the City
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          2  Council, to make sure that before the budget is

          3  passed in June that enough money is allocated to

          4  carry out the business of the Department of

          5  Buildings. That's the type of advocacy that I want

          6  to see from you guys and all of the organizations

          7  that deal with this.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: I think Council

          9  Member Jackson is on the money and the Department of

         10  Buildings did receive extra funding this year on top

         11  of what the Mayor put in and that's largely because

         12  this Committee cares so much about this issue.

         13  Largely because of me, but I can't do it without the

         14  support of colleagues. You know it takes large

         15  consensus to get items through this body, so I have

         16  to share the credit with the members of my

         17  Committee. Thank you very much.

         18                 We will go on to the next panel of

         19  four and I believe this will be our final panel. Mr.

         20  Robert Altman from the Queens and Bronx Building

         21  Association of New York; Ms. Annie Kurtin of the AIA

         22  New York Chapter (if she's still here); Mr. William

         23  Gati, AIA of Queens, is he still here? Please come

         24  forward. And Mr. Mitchell Goldberg from the New York

         25  Society of Architects. And this will be the final
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          2  panel and I want to thank everyone on this panel for

          3  the extreme amount of patience that they have showed

          4  with this Committee today. You can begin in any

          5  order. I'd also like to thank my colleagues who have

          6  stuck around to the very end of this hearing. I very

          7  much appreciate it.

          8                 MR. GOLDBERG: I'd like to thank you

          9  for the opportunity to address this. My name is

         10  Mitchell Goldberg. I'm a licensed architect in New

         11  York and I've had the privilege of attending the

         12  full length of this discussion and observing the

         13  functions of the Department of Building and the

         14  construction issue for over 20 years. It doesn't

         15  mean I practice everyday for a living. I have a lot

         16  of talent up my sleeve and I do different stuff.

         17                 However, I do have to address, Mr.

         18  Jackson, with regard to the budget and the Mayor and

         19  how the business of the Department of Buildings is

         20  run with regard to the City's overall budget. Before

         21  Commissioner Charlie Smith managed that department,

         22  it was a self- contained unit that was profitable.

         23  There wasn't the problems that we are having now

         24  with regard to self- certification. It didn't exist.

         25  And the unit basically hung itself. It balanced its
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          2  own budget. It had its own staff. It had adequate

          3  inspectors. And the architects and engineers were

          4  not being burdened with the additional legal and

          5  financial responsibilities of having to do the

          6  Department of Buildings work.

          7                 Today, due to the fact that gee, we

          8  have a budget crunch. We've got various

          9  administrations. We have a very respectful Mayor who

         10  has done an awful lot of good. But they also look at

         11  a Department like the Department of Buildings at DOB

         12  as a cash cow. Hey, we got 70,000 buildings going

         13  on. Let's raise the fees. Let's lower our staff and

         14  overhead requirements. Let's push the responsibility

         15  and the cost of building inspections down on the

         16  professionals so we are more profitable and then

         17  let's take that profit out of the Department and

         18  stick it in the general budget for the City of New

         19  York.

         20                 Well, ladies and gentlemen, this is

         21  the problem that has created from it. Although, I

         22  certainly believe that self- certification is a good

         23  thing, in general, and there is always bad apples in

         24  the bunch and I know the professional constituents

         25  that are sitting behind me because I have worked
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          2  with them for 20 years. However, and I would have

          3  never stated right up front that I would blatantly

          4  support Proposal 29 from Michael McMahon out of the

          5  blue.

          6                 However, if the Mayor and his

          7  respected financial involvement with the City's

          8  budget would simply take their hands out of the

          9  Department of Building's pocket and let them stand

         10  alone as a self- conducted financial entity, they

         11  would have the funds needed to have the adequate

         12  staff and take this responsibility off the shoulders

         13  of us because you want to know something, I was sued

         14  for $16 million because I refused to sign off for a

         15  CO because I was protecting the firefighters lives

         16  against unfiled illegal improvements in terms of gas

         17  raisers for fireplace units and it made my life

         18  misery. Really misery to the point that I don't even

         19  want to practice in the City and it was for what a

         20  little fee that the some client is trying to ram

         21  unfiled improvements down my throat because I am on

         22  the hook as the registered architect.

         23                 You have got to deal with all the

         24  overhead and legal responsibilities and everything

         25  else. I almost reject the insinuation that
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          2  professionals because they are being paid by the

          3  client and the client wants to get a CO that all of

          4  a sudden we are not honorable, ethical, professional

          5  practitioners. Just because we are trying go through

          6  the construction process and once it goes into

          7  construction, we're supposed to be unbiased

          8  arbitrators working between the architect, the

          9  engineer, the contractor and we're suppose to be

         10  clean and above any other forces. Yes, reality comes

         11  into play economically. I'm sure people do bad stuff

         12  because they have to pay their electric bill.

         13                 The truth of the matter is, is that

         14  the City in their fiscal government decisions is

         15  doing a bad thing to themselves by extracting profit

         16  from the Department of Buildings, cutting down on

         17  staff, cutting down on resources, dumping the

         18  responsibilities on the professionals. You guys have

         19  a mess to deal with. I think you might want to

         20  consider reverting back to letting that unit stand

         21  alone, provide them with the resources that they

         22  need and stop taking funds out of it like it is a

         23  cash cow. Figure some other way to get cash. I'm

         24  sorry.

         25                 MR. ALTMAN: Good afternoon. My name
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          2  is Robert Altman and I am here representing the

          3  Queens and Bronx Building Association and the

          4  Building Association of New York City. There are

          5  affiliated with the New York State Builders and

          6  National Association of Homebuilders and they

          7  represent four out of the five boroughs of this

          8  City; everybody except Manhattan. Our general take

          9  on the pieces of legislation (I'm not going to read

         10  directly from the written statement) is that we do

         11  not oppose the fact that there can be an effort to

         12  in fact end self- certification.

         13                 However, there are a number of

         14  conditions before that and those conditions should

         15  be meet ahead of time. Undoubtedly if you did it

         16  right now, out of the blue with this piece of

         17  legislation, the Department would fall apart. You

         18  need, of course, to get more personnel (that's been

         19  brought up by other people); you need to get better

         20  trained personnel and to keep those people, you have

         21  to have better paid personnel. No one has brought up

         22  the pay factor. But you certainly want to keep

         23  people at the Department. Because what happens

         24  personnel wise and the Department goes through

         25  phases when a few years ago when Commissioner
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          2  Lancaster took over, I remember one person saying,

          3  you know how this thing is going to fixed. It is

          4  going to get fixed when the real estate market dies

          5  all of a sudden because there is nothing in there

          6  and they realize, wow, we don't need more personnel

          7  when they needed it right then.

          8                 To the Commissioner's credit, the

          9  Department has improved quite a bit. I think one of

         10  the problems right now is of the perception is that

         11  and I have attended one of the hearings of your

         12  panel, Council Member Oddo, was that a lot of people

         13  were complaining at the Bronx meeting that I heard

         14  of things that were happening 18 months, two years

         15  ago, three years ago when things were a mess. Things

         16  are not perfect now. But this is rare because our

         17  industry has four or five years ago constantly

         18  blasting the Department of Buildings.

         19                 We say now of all the agencies we

         20  deal with that and I'm taking about DEP,

         21  transportation, City Planning, it is the best agency

         22  that we deal with. And the other ones are going

         23  downhill. This one has at least turned the corner

         24  and is moving in the right direction. I almost would

         25  prefer if the Council would go do a panel on City
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          2  Planning because City Planning doesn't have enough

          3  staff. That's why it is not even handling your down

          4  zoning in an appropriate fashion because it doesn't

          5  have enough staff. But even worse for our industry,

          6  it doesn't handle the applications.

          7                 Now they have had some, some increase

          8  in staff this year. It's not really sufficient at

          9  all. I mean, beating up on Buildings seems almost,

         10  they are getting the staff now. They are putting up.

         11  We are seeing improvement with what was there

         12  previously. We hope to see because of the increase

         13  resources even more in the coming years. Its our

         14  hope that it does get better and it does get better

         15  with its enforcement and with all its resources.

         16  Because right now the proof is going to be in the

         17  pudding in a year or so. Now if you are able handle

         18  it so that it is better and even more resources can

         19  make it so that you don't self- certification,

         20  you're not going to find our industry opposing

         21  eliminating self- certification if they can have the

         22  timely review of their applications made by the

         23  Department of Buildings. It's just fine by us. One

         24  way or the other, we care about timeliness.

         25                 One thing I'm disappointed is that
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          2  Council Member McMahon is not here because I was at

          3  counsel staff back in 1993 when Commissioner Mealy

          4  first suggested doing self- certification. It took

          5  about a year or so for the Department of Buildings

          6  to put it into action. He was very blunt frankly at

          7  the time with respect to why it was being done. He

          8  was going to have budget cuts. He was going to have

          9  to cut his staff and he had to figure out a way to

         10  make it so that the Buildings Department just didn't

         11  come to a standstill. It was that simple. I think if

         12  you bring him in here, he would state that. He's

         13  readily available. He's not gone anywhere. And so

         14  that the was the problem and that was how it had to

         15  be addressed.

         16                 The amount of people hasn't

         17  necessarily increased to the point in time where the

         18  Department take care of. Now that was happening,

         19  1993, that plan was happening also at a time when

         20  the building industry was still dead. The building

         21  industry really didn't start recovering until '94

         22  and '95 and thank God, self- certification was there

         23  starting in '94 and '95. Because they were still

         24  doing more budget cuts and the Department could no

         25  way shape or form have handled the increase that was

                                                            183

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  happening, beginning to happen, because they were

          3  down because they were running on a staff when it

          4  was running on 1991, 1992, 1993, no construction

          5  being done staff. Well, the Department was able to

          6  handle it then because there was nothing to do.

          7                 Now as you know, there is way more to

          8  do. Way more to do since 1991, 1992. You can't run a

          9  Department -- and that's also one of the problems

         10  that you are going to face because there is going to

         11  be the temptation when things slow down that you

         12  don't need the staff. So let's cut it. And then this

         13  runs in cycles and therefore, what will happen is

         14  the Department will all of a sudden will say, gee,

         15  it's getting busy again. There is a lag and then it

         16  will take forever. The Department will break down

         17  and morale will get down. People will leave, staff

         18  will leave because they are well- trained and know

         19  what they are doing and the market picks up, why

         20  should they stay at the Department of Buildings with

         21  the salary levels they have.

         22                 They may even still be a role for

         23  self- certification as sort of that gap that you can

         24  sometimes have between your space line staff and if

         25  something goes and there is an increase. But

                                                            184

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  frankly, with the amount of increase we've had in

          3  the past ten years, you would have needed to

          4  increase staff anyway. But that only happens and

          5  really only happened in the past few years. I know

          6  the Department is citing things in the past four or

          7  five. But the budget went up $17 million last year

          8  and a little bit more this year. The budget really

          9  has only been increased there in the past two years.

         10                 This is legalistically a difficult

         11  issue. We sympathize with the desire of the Council

         12  to in fact not have bad people self- certifying. Our

         13  concern, again, is timely review. Timely review if

         14  it is there, end of self- certification, no problem.

         15  Untimely review, there has got to be a way to

         16  relieve the pressure off the Department.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you. Next.

         18                 MR. GATI: My name is Bill Gati. I am

         19  the President of the Queens Chapter of American

         20  Institute of Architects, licensed professional for

         21  about 22 years and I work in the Building Department

         22  as filing rep applicant and I'm very familiar with

         23  the procedures and the process. I won't bore with

         24  repeating what everybody says except to say that I

         25  concur with most of the points that were raised. I
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          2  had given you the written testimony. I assume that

          3  you read these. Is that a valid assumption? Okay.

          4  Being that you read this, I won't bore you with

          5  reading it for you like if we were in school. I'll

          6  leave it to read on your own. I will test you at the

          7  next hearing to make sure you learned everything.

          8                 I do want say that I had sat on the

          9  Task Force Committee that Councilman Oddo had

         10  organized and attended many meetings. Councilman

         11  Oddo knows my opinion and that of the AIA Queens.

         12  However, the good news is that this morning I had a

         13  brain storm session with some really interesting

         14  ideas. The problem is that everyone is saying that

         15  there is a problem with professional certification.

         16  Whether you have to audit the applications, you

         17  don't have to audit the applications, even the

         18  architects will admit that there is a problem. There

         19  is a few rotten apples. But really no one has come

         20  up with solutions. How do you solve the problem?

         21                 There are a few possibilities that's

         22  already built into the system that no one had

         23  mentioned so far that I just want to raise to your

         24  awareness. One of those is that presently there is

         25  an audit process. I assume that you are all familiar
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          2  with the audit process. Let me enlighten you. The

          3  Building Department audits 20 percent of all

          4  professionally certified applications that go into

          5  the Building Department. That's across the board.

          6  It's 20 percent. And then every time there is a post

          7  approval amendment which means there is a change in

          8  the plans, they audit it another 20 percent.

          9                 Statistically speaking, the

         10  probability of any project getting audited is almost

         11  40 percent. If you are concerned about the efficacy

         12  of the application, why not increase the audit rates

         13  to 30 percent, 40 percent, 50 percent, 100 percent,

         14  whatever you want. If you audit more projects, you

         15  will eliminate any probability of anyone doing

         16  anything wrong because the Building Department will

         17  review the application. Quite frankly, I've been to

         18  the Queens Building Department lately, there is

         19  plenty of people just hanging around reading books

         20  and stuff during the day. There is plenty of work

         21  for them. Why don't you just increase the amount of

         22  projects that get audited? Let's say 40 percent.

         23  Don't go up to a 100 percent. But start with 40

         24  percent and see what the difference is.

         25                 I agree with the previous statements.
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          2  I think what you will find quite frankly is most of

          3  the applications that you audit will clear on the

          4  first try without any problems. But it will give you

          5  the piece of mind to know that the City is doing

          6  something. The other thing that I want to mention is

          7  that I'm a former professor and I think education

          8  knowledge is the answer to this problem. A lot of

          9  people just simply don't know what the zoning is.

         10  Like the gentlemen said before, the City Planning

         11  website has a disclaimer on it. On one part of the

         12  website it says there is the most recent map and you

         13  have to use this. And then there is a little box

         14  saying you can't use this because we can't

         15  substantiate that this is the most recent map. The

         16  Building Department uses it. It's a joke. It's an

         17  absolute joke. Knowledge is really the answer.

         18                 I think you should start training

         19  people at the early stages like when they go to

         20  college. I went to City College and have a masters

         21  degree in Urban Planning at City College. And

         22  throughout my education, I really didn't learn that

         23  much about building codes. It took me five years to

         24  figure out how the building code is. We don't learn

         25  this stuff in college. There is nothing at all in
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          2  the licensing exam that deals with the New York City

          3  building code. Somebody could pass a licensing exam

          4  and file an application to do a skyscraper and self-

          5  certify it and there is nothing to prevent them from

          6  doing that.

          7                 I think the problem is education. The

          8  problem is not so much with the Building Department,

          9  but the problem is with the State Education Board.

         10  There are not strict enough as to who they let into

         11  the profession. I really feel that decisions

         12  motivated by fear which is what we're trying argue

         13  over here creates weak designs and a weak

         14  profession. I think having decisions that are

         15  motivated by knowledge and dedication gives you

         16  strong decisions and strong architecture. Another

         17  gentlemen mentioned and I concur with him that you

         18  will lose a lot of architects and engineers if you

         19  advocate for Rule 21. Because no one wants to lose

         20  their license. They will stop self- certifying. They

         21  will go to another borough and license in New

         22  Jersey, Connecticut and New York. I'll open an

         23  office in Connecticut. I have no problem with doing

         24  that. I'm not going to jeopardize my license.

         25                 I think it is really the
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          2  responsibility of City to educate, inform and

          3  inspire the design community and what I mean by that

          4  is the website has come a long way, 311 comes a long

          5  way. But there should be more seminars. There should

          6  be more meetings that the Building Department

          7  organizes. Whenever there is a Building Department

          8  memorandum that gets passed, it should be plastered

          9  on the website. It shouldn't be hidden somewhere

         10  that you have to go through ten clicks to find it.

         11  It's not there. It is the responsibility of the City

         12  to educate and inform and inspire the architects. If

         13  they don't do that, I think it is a problem.

         14                 One other thing and I read through

         15  all these and incidentally I disagree with all of

         16  them. I think the problem with them is that you are

         17  in essence trying to validate what is true and what

         18  is false. You can't do that. Because architectural

         19  is very subjective. Throughout the review process,

         20  we go through reconsiderations. We meet with the

         21  Commissioner. We meet with the Deputy Commissioner

         22  and they make subjective determinations. One Deputy

         23  Commissioner may disagree with another one. The

         24  Commissioner may disagree with the other

         25  Commissioner.
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          2                 In fact, in a typical meeting with

          3  all the commissioners in the City, none of them

          4  agree with anything. It's very, very subjective. So

          5  what one considers true, the other one considers

          6  false. What one considers false, the other -- most

          7  of them will tell you that there is no true or false

          8  in this business. And varies borough to borough and

          9  also day to day within that borough. I go to one

         10  Commissioner one day on one issue and then he says

         11  no, you can't do it. I go back two weeks later and

         12  he forgets about it and he says yes you can do it.

         13  Literally. I have proof. I can give you so many

         14  examples.

         15                 The other big problem is that there

         16  is contradictions, complications and subjectiveness

         17  of codes that cloud, totally cloud the truth. And

         18  the point that rendering the decision can be so

         19  subjective that it is an invalid decision. You have

         20  to have a committee to sit down and say well, ten

         21  years ago it was true, but today it is not true. Or

         22  yesterday it was true, but today's not true and

         23  tomorrow it's not going to be true. Therefore, we

         24  have the right to take this person's license away.

         25  There is no valid basis of rendering a decision in
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          2  this subjective climate.

          3                 Also, I think enforcing errors by

          4  determining truth is very, very difficult. First of

          5  all, you have to establish what truth is, what is

          6  the penalty? Did the person lie intentionally? Did

          7  the person not lie intentionally? Was it a mistake?

          8  Was it a problem with the Building Department? It's

          9  so difficult that by jeopardizing people's license

         10  in that environment will create the spirit of fear

         11  within them that they just won't file.

         12                 Unlike other professions like law,

         13  architecture and design is an art. There is often no

         14  right or wrong. It's either beautiful or not and

         15  there is no way you can legislate taste in aesthetic

         16  without taking away freedom of expression from the

         17  architects. There is no way you can say this is not

         18  beautiful, this is false, you can't do it. It's just

         19  impossible. If you are going to remember anything,

         20  remember this, educate, don't legislate.

         21                 However, I will tell you another

         22  thing that I do agree with you on a very important

         23  point. And just to give you a sense, I do have a

         24  balanced perspective on this. On extreme cases, only

         25  on extreme cases of willfully violated the law.
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          2  Example, over building on purpose, causing risk to

          3  public safety, health, welfare; practitioners should

          4  be educated that they did something wrong and then

          5  disciplined. Because for the most part, it is a case

          6  of not really knowing that they did something wrong

          7  or not knowing the true essence of what they did.

          8  But just telling them that you lost your license

          9  because you did something wrong without educating

         10  them exacerbates the problem and precipitates the

         11  problem because education is the issue.

         12                 I only have a few more points. The

         13  problem with the system is --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: We do have to sum

         15  up.

         16                 MR. GATI: All right. There is another

         17  issue that's very, very important. In terms of

         18  educating the architects and the engineers, there is

         19  certain engineers like for instance a chemical

         20  engineer that study chemical engineering in college

         21  and that's all he studied and he's excellent at

         22  putting chemicals together and creating plastic. He

         23  becomes a PE. He is literally allowed to file an

         24  application at the Buildings Department to design

         25  skyscraper. I think there is something wrong with
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          2  that. I think the engineer should have knowledge of

          3  architecture in order to file anything with the

          4  Buildings Department. And the education should

          5  emphasize the codes. There is no emphasis on codes

          6  and education.

          7                 Of course, I'm not saying that all

          8  engineers should be architects. But I'm saying that

          9  those who design and file things in the City should

         10  have an architectural design background. I know I'm

         11  going to get in trouble for saying that, but that's

         12  my own personal opinion. Also, architects should be

         13  required to take mandatory zoning and code

         14  compliance classes as part of learning units

         15  process. We have to take continuing education. I

         16  don't know if you are aware of this. But we have to

         17  take and in some cases, 16 health, safety and

         18  welfare classes every year, credits. Part of that

         19  should be zoning and code compliance.

         20                 Let's see. Oh, the other thing in

         21  terms of legislation, I would agree that you should

         22  require applicants that self- certify applications

         23  to carry errors and liability insurance. Because

         24  very often what happens and this is a very, very

         25  important point. What very often happens when the
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          2  project is filed erroneously, to no fault of the

          3  applicant, the person that owns the property gets

          4  the brunt of having to restore it to its proper

          5  condition and if the applicant doesn't have errors

          6  and omissions insurance, the owner will bear the

          7  brunt. Why do contractors have to have insurance,

          8  but architects/engineers don't? I think that's a

          9  very important thing. It's very subtle. But it make

         10  a very, very big impact.

         11                 Incidentally, we mentioned about the

         12  prefiling review for zoning that's in place right

         13  now in Queens, Brooklyn and the Bronx. I think that

         14  will solve 90 percent if not 95 percent of the

         15  problems. Basically, architects/engineers should be

         16  taking the lead, not the expeditors. I think the

         17  process should be streamlined to make it easier for

         18  architects and engineers and the applicants to take

         19  the lead. We shouldn't have to use expeditors. There

         20  is really no reason for that. I know I'm going to

         21  get in trouble for saying that. But I think the

         22  expediters do corrupt the system in some way.

         23                 I think without them if you made the

         24  Buildings Department streamlined enough so that I

         25  can go down to the Building Department and get the
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          2  job done so I don't have to pay $1,500 for some

          3  expeditor to file the application, you benefit the

          4  profession, the public and the Building Department.

          5  There is no reason for that. Corporation between AIA

          6  and the City, I want to assure you that as a leader

          7  of the AIA and I'm also involved with the State, I

          8  will give you 100 percent of our commitment to help

          9  you in your fight to improve the Building

         10  Department. Because it is to our benefit, it is to

         11  your benefit, it is to the benefit of the community.

         12                 The last point, require the license

         13  of the general contractors. That's one --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: There is a bill.

         15  There is another separate piece of legislation --

         16                 MR. GATI: Let me know when you have

         17  that, I will be here.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: I'm sure Council

         19  Member Oddo will be glad to let you know.

         20                 MR. GATI: I'll be here. I'll advocate

         21  in your favor for that. I will advocate in your

         22  favor. Not only that, everyone in our Chapter will

         23  advocate for that. To end, I appreciate your time.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you.

         25                 MR. GAIT: I appreciate your time and
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          2  I'm really amazed that your eyes are still open

          3  after sitting here for so long.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: So am I.

          5                 MR. GAIT: But leave with this note,

          6  education and awareness is the answer; not fear and

          7  more legislation. Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you. This

          9  concludes this hearing of Housing and Buildings on

         10  self-certification.

         11                 (Meeting adjourned at 5:20 p.m.)
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